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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. All of the production facilities
of the Group are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and substantially all the sales of the Group are also made
in the PRC. The Group had export sales to Japan during the year,
which accounted for approximately 0.36% of the Group's turnover
for the year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,508 employees as at 31 December 2013.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co.
Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2013 for your review.

2013 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold 56,173
vehicles, a decrease of 6.5% over the 60,084 vehicles sold last
year. Turnover was RMB5.78 billion, a decrease of 5.9% over
RMB6.15 billion as recorded last year. Profit after tax for the year
was RMB380 million, an increase of 27.7% over RMB300 million as

recorded last year.

REVIEW OF OPERATION

In 2013, manufacturing operation in the PRC is much more difficult
under an intricate and complex economic environment. Facing
the generally sluggish demand for trucks, competition among
enterprises was much intensive. All our tenacious staff worked hard
to survive in such adverse condition. The Group not only maintained
stability with an upward momentum in its operation quality and
effectiveness in times of adversity, it also constructed a solid
foundation for achieving development under the “12th Five-Year
Plan”.

1. Strived to develop market according to and focusing on
network and customers, our two core factors. In counties
and towns, we continuously developed and nurtured top class
distributors, motivated new distributors and those with long
history to set up branches in close proximity to customer for
purpose of sales and provision of services, and facilitated
customers’ access to high quality and middle price products.
On-going development of the dairy industry and products
with inelastic demand, such as medicine, seafood and fruits,
provided us with support, and we continued to explore
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opportunities in livelihood-related operations which were
least affected by macro-economic volatility. In the second half
of the year, we captured the opportunities arising from the
accelerated implementation of emission standards for National
IV across the country, gave full play to the comparative
advantages of technology and performance-to-price ratio of
Qingling’s products, which met emission levels stipulated
in National IV, and intensified efforts in securing customers
wishing to meet environmental requirements among
competitors. Having made every effort, there was an upward
trend for our sales in 2013, an increase of approximately 20%
in sales in the fourth quarter as compared to the third quarter.
Such increase exceeded that of the commercial trucks industry
in the same period. In addition, this momentum kept going in
January this year.

Advancement in technology for extension of market
presence by on-going development. Under the change in
emission level from National Ill to National IV, we enhanced
the performance and broadened specifications of all our
products in order to strengthen related competitiveness
further. To satisfy customer demand, we gave a full play
to the expertise possessed by group companies and
reconstruction factories of the society, provided wider variety
of refrigeration trucks and composite board vehicles which
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

satisfied the specification, and sped up the development of
numerous high value-added modified vehicles which met
market needs, including stake trucks, vending trucks, fire
service command vehicles, vehicles with semi-wingspan and
chassis for wreckers. In addition, the technological reform
for our coating line system has been completed and we
pushed forward our newly-established testing and checking
centre for commencement of operation. We encouraged
frontline operators and technicians to exert effort in making
reasonable proposals and mild reform in respect of manpower,
machineries, materials and approaches utilized on-site. All
these helped improving the quality of our products, reducing
costs, enhancing efficiency and boosting market expansion.

Continuous adjustment in our organization and functional
design while grasping knowledge of professional
management. \We grasped knowledge in basis management
and facilitated the organization and functions of our
procurement department by provision of updated design
and adjustment. Following promotion of management
standardization for our equipment, we began monitoring
the operation of our key equipment and reinforced the
management of spare parts. Further, we imposed strict
accountability for any economic loss caused by sub-standard
quality and delay in delivery, and continuously conduct
effective quality control campaigns. We have introduced the
delivery management system of Isuzu, which is up to standard
and up to date, and improved the management ability of our
production units. All these helped upgrading our standard in
respect of basic management.

Continuous and in-depth building of our cadres and
workers. To our cadres, we kept training to encourage
openness to ideas, style and ability. To our professional
technicians, we intensified on-site training with focus on
key initiatives, arranged discussions on specific technical
issues, improved training on-the-spot, and initiated training
for deepening of professional and basic knowledge. We
introduced special training and examination for our high-tech
staff and set examination and promotion assessment for
them. With reference to the standard of national occupational
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

skill and having considered the Company’s actual condition,
we formulated new standard for classification of workers
into intermediate grade workers and senior workers, and
technicians into certified technicians and senior technicians,
and organized training courses, with examination held, to
be conducted by lecturers specialized in our area and our in-
house experts. After our on-going provision of training over a
period of no less than one year, a normalization mechanism for
encouraging development among senior technicians has been
established. In the first round of promotion and employment,
340 employees have been promoted to senior worker trainees
or senior worker, and 124 employees have been engaged as
technicians or senior technicians. This mechanism stimulated
our technicians’ eagerness to knowledge and willingness to
give full play to their talents and passion in the performance of
duties.

In addition, our projects of heavy-duty vehicles and engines for
heavy-duty vehicles have entered into a development phrase full of
difficulties and challenges in 2013. Through our close coordination
with Isuzu in respect of accelerating the implementation of
product development, domestic production and marketing, our
comprehensive development in operation has been gradually
formed. It is expected we will supply a few of our first and newly
developed heavy-truck in the second half of 2014.

Outlook and Prospectus

Facing the continuously tough external condition in 2014, it is
expected growth in the aggregate demand for trucks will be
insignificant and market players will compete among themselves for
the purpose of reducing inventory. The stringent implementation of
emission standard across the country brings to us an opportunity
for our high quality trucks. To achieve the goal of “12th Five-
Year Plan”, the Company will be persistent in putting great effort
to manufacture light and medium-duty trucks, and increase the
production of heavy-duty trucks and engines for heavy-duty vehicles.
Our focus is as follows:

1. Construction and development of new distributors and
branches in counties and towns for direct distribution of our
products with satisfactory performance and specifications at
reasonable price and provision of sales service.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

2. Independent development and seeking proactively for
customers who are interested in environmental products. We
will focus on the development of “sales and transportation”
operation for our products, including cold milk, medicines and
marine products.

3. Close cooperation with Isuzu Motors Ltd.. We will work with
Isuzu to efficiently manufacture high quality heavy-duty trucks
and engines for heavy-duty trucks according to designated
schedule.

4. Further enhance our capability on software, such as
technology, basic management and team quality, through
expansion of market and development of heavy-duty trucks.

Looking ahead, the Company will strive to manage actively its
production and operation in all major aspects. We will put every
effort to achieve a sound operation with significant growth for the
purpose of bringing satisfactory return to our investors.

DU Weidong
Chairman

20 March 2014
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. DU Weidong, aged 46, has been an executive Director and a
member of the remuneration committee since 5 June 2013, and
was appointed as the chairman of the Board of the Company and
the chairman of the nomination committee since 3 September
2013. Mr. DU holds a bachelor degree in Engineering. He graduated
from Gansu University of Technology, majoring in Industrial and
Civil Architecture, and is now taking part time undergraduate
courses in the Mechanical Design, Manufacturing and Automation
Department in Chongging University. It has been over 22 years
since he took his first job in the factory of the Company after his
graduation in 1992. Mr. DU took training courses in the Equipment
Division at the very beginning, and later worked as an assistant
engineer, officer-in-charge and deputy director of the Planning and
Construction Department. Mr. DU was then transferred to the
Marketing Department in 1998, and he worked on the frontline
of the market for 11 consecutive years, during which, he used to
be responsible for the marketing activities in Guangdong, Fujian,
Hainan, Shandong and Henan and worked as the deputy director
and the director of the Sales Department of the Company and the
assistant to the general manager and the deputy general manager
of the Group. He was reassigned to the Manufacturing Department
in 2010, and he was sent to Isuzu to study the IMM, being the
Isuzu Manufacturing Management, after which, he began to take
charge of the manufacturing, export, equipment and safety-related
issues of the Company and the Group. Mr. DU is also a director
of BRAT+H (EF) BHHARAGF and HEERBEARA
8], the vice chairman of AT+#ER (EF) "REZTHBHERAA
and the chairman of EEE{R#EiEAMR AR, Mr. DU was appointed
as the deputy general manager of the Company from June 2012
to 22 January 2014. He was appointed as the general manager of
Qingling Motors (Group) Company Limited (the “Qingling Group”),
the controlling Shareholder, in February 2013.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI, aged 71, has been an executive
Director and the vice chairman of the Company since 6 June 2012.
Mr. TSUTSUMI graduated from the Department of Mechanical
Engineering of Faculty of Engineering of Kagoshima University. He
joined Isuzu Motors Co. Ltd (“Isuzu”) from April 1968 and has nearly
45 years of experience in production, manufacturing and technical
management of Isuzu Motors Vehicles. Mr. TSUTSUMI was an
executive Director from 14 June 2007 to 16 June 2009.

Mr. GAO Jianmin, aged 54, has been an executive Director since
28 April 1994. Mr. GAO is currently an executive director and
managing director of Silver Grant International Industries Limited
(listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong
Kong Stock Exchange”), Stock Code: 171) and an executive director
of Jiangxi Copper Company Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 358). Mr. GAO has more than 27 years of
experience in finance, industrial investment and development. He
holds a Bachelor degree in engineering from Qinghua University.

Mr. Makoto TANAKA, aged 62, has been an executive Director
since 17 June 2008. Mr. TANAKA is also the general manager of the
Company. Mr. TANAKA graduated from Nihon University. He joined
Isuzu in April 1975. He served in different positions in Isuzu from
December 1994 to April 2005, including supervisor of assembly
team of Large Size Automobiles Technology Department, director
of production coordination department of production technology
planning office and director of PT public works department. He was
president of Isuzu Engine Manufacturing (Thailand) Co. Ltd. during
the period from May 2005 to April 2007. He returned to Isuzu in
April 2007 and served as PT production executive director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA, aged 65, has been an executive Director
since 2 March 2011. Mr. TSUKIOKA graduated from Waseda
University in Japan. Mr. TSUKIOKA joined Isuzu in April 1972 and
from November 1998 until November 2002, he held the positions
in Isuzu as team member of the production planning department,
team member of the merchandise planning department, head
of the 1st, 3rd and 5th divisions of the commercial vehicles
merchandise planning department, officer of the commercial
vehicles merchandise planning department and officer of the
vehicles development office. From June 2003 until February 2004,
Mr. TSUKIOKA held the post as executive director of lIsuzu's
technology development planning department and design center.
From April 2005 until March 2006, he served as the Area Operations
Executive of the North America. From April 2006 until the present,
Mr. TSUKIOKA has been the executive vice president and director
of Isuzu.

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang, aged 52, has been an executive Director
since 30 October 2013. Mr. ZENG holds a bachelor’'s degree and
received education in Geography Faculty of Southwest China
Normal University. He previously worked at the Education Office
and the League Committee of Sichuan Vinylon Factory under
Sinopec and the Leading Group Office of the Three Gorges
Project of the People's Government of Chongging. Starting from
1988, Mr. ZENG also held positions as an officer-in-chief of the
Industrial Bureau of the Planning Committee of Chongging, and the
Director of the Automobile Equipment Bureau of the Economic and
Information Technology Commission of Chongging. He is familiar
with the automobiles and spare parts industry and has involved in
the management of the planning, development and launch of vital
projects of Chongging’s automobiles and spare parts industry. Mr.
ZENG is currently the deputy general manager of Qingling Group
and the Company, and the chairman of the board of EE BB EE
f2 /A &), a member of Qingling Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. PAN Yong, aged 63, has been an executive Director since 28
April 1994. Mr. PAN is a deputy general manager of the Company,
a chairman of a few members of the Group as well as a director
and deputy general manager of Qingling Group. He is a senior
economist, and has more than 33 years of experience in corporate
management and sales of Qingling Group. Mr. PAN graduated from
Hunan University, specialising in automobile studies.

Mr. LONG Tao, aged 62, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in
accounting. Mr. LONG holds a master’s degree in economics. He
had served at Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics, and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr.
LONG had acted as a member of Securities Issue and Approval
Committee of China Securities Regulatory Commission and
member of Chinese accounting expert panel for China-Hong Kong
Securities Team. Mr. LONG is currently an associate professor
of the Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics and the Chairman of Beijing Haiwen Investment
Consultants Inc.. Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and
experience in corporate finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal,
restructuring of enterprise and listing. Mr. LONG also serves as the
independent non-executive director of China Asset Management
Co., Ltd and Beijing North Star Company Limited (listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 588).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 63, has been an independent non-
executive Director since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG
is general manager of Chongging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member
of the China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers
Association, and a council member of the Chongging Lawyers
Association, a vice chairman of the Foreign Affairs Committee of
Chongging Lawyers Association and a member of the Chongging
Legal Academy. Mr. SONG has been a lawyer and notary for 28
years. Mr. SONG graduated from South West Institute of Political
Science and Law and also studied international law in the China
University of Political Science and Law and foreign economic law at
Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice chairman of Chongging
Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office.

Mr. XU Bingjin, aged 75, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 22 September 2004. He is also a member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. XU is the president of China Europe
Economic Association for Technical and Economic Cooperation,
vice president of the World Trade Organization Institute, part-
time professor of Shanghai Foreign Trade College and senior
consultant of Northeastern University. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Engineering Economics from Jilin Industrial University and is a
senior engineer. Mr. XU has been a former assistant to the minister
of the Ministry of China Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation,
deputy chief of the Delegation of China Entry to GATT and the
Delegation of China Entry to WTO. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Brilliance China Automotive Holdings
Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code:
1114).

Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 50, has been an independent non-executive
Director since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the executive Director
and chairman of Wonderful Sky Financial Group Holdings Limited
(listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1260), an
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

executive director and deputy managing director of Silver Grant
International Industries Limited (listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 171) and an independent non-executive
director of Chongging Iron & Steel Company Limited (listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1053). Mr. LIU
graduated from Beijing Normal University with a master degree
in science. He has over 15 years of experience in corporate
administration and trade business. In October 2008, Mr. LIU was
awarded “Outstanding Young Chinese Entrepreneur of the World”
by Asiaweek, as an acknowledgement of his excellent corporate
management and prominent business strategies.

SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 46, has been the Supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 15 June 2006 and is also the Chairman
of the Supervisory Committee. Ms. MIN is the deputy secretary
of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Workers Union
of Qingling Group, and has 24 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

Ms. ZHOU Hong, aged 62, has been a Supervisor representing
the Shareholders since 11 June 1997. Ms. ZHOU is the deputy
secretary of the Communist Party Discipline Commission of the
Company and a political specialist. She has 38 years of experience
in management. Ms. ZHOU graduated from Sichuan Party Cadre
Distant Learning Institute in 1988, specializing in economic
management.



\mo AR
N 4

[
Eh) it
B 2

> I8
5 8 4
¥

BMAEE 99m BT —F
NARNBEE SHBIRREE
MESE FEELEEEN @ AL
BReBEX BERE2ELE
fZeRN—NWNAEFLtAEALXR
AIIHEES BFBREGEHRES
BT RREEREEY
BB Eb & o

TEEBLAANE

REBEXRE 61 RALQAEE
SETMLETEZ ARME - @
REMBEREEBEEIE -
Bl GETED - A= RKEE -
hALERENRTEERKRBETE
EEEX ESANUBEERES
HEEB=T\F&% RIGEE
KREBEMBHALR -

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEI Bin, aged 39, has been a Supervisor representing the staff
and workers since 6 June 2012. Mr. LEI graduated from Hunan
University, specializing in international finance, and obtained the
bachelor degree in economics. He joined the Company from July
1997 until the present. Mr. LEl was served as a vice minister of
comprehensive plan. He is the minister of the financial department
of Qingling Group.

PRC COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WU Nianging, aged 61, is the Chief Accountant and the
Company Secretary based in China of the Company. Mr. WU is
also the assistant to the General Manager and the Deputy Chief
Accountant of Qingling Group. Mr. WU is a Senior Economist.
Mr. WU graduated from China Television University, specialising
in industrial management. He has over 38 years of experience in
accounting and financial management, and has been the Deputy
Head of Accounting Department of Qingling Group.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE’'S REPORT

Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each
member has been performing his duty in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association with a view of protecting the
interests of shareholders and the Company. We have attended
the board meetings and have given our opinions regarding the
business development, market expansion, technological reform,
basic management and team building of the Company during board
meetings. We have also monitored the guiding ideology of the
management and considered whether the decisions made by the
management were in compliance with state laws and whether they
were appropriate for the development of the Company and were in
the interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information from time to time. In our opinion, the
financial statements have been properly prepared while the
accounting principles and the method of financial management
adopted are in compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

We have carefully examined the financial statements, the
Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of profit to
be presented before the forthcoming annual general meeting by
the Board of Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the board,
directors, managers and senior management have not engaged
in any malpractices which would be prejudicial to the interests of
shareholders and employees of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as
well as the economic results of the Company, and we are confident
about the future development of the Company.

MIN Qing
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Chongging, the PRC
20 March 2014
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose
vehicles and diesel and petrol engines. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures are set out in notes 35,
19 and 20 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81. The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.13 per share to the
shareholders whose names appear in the register of members on 24
June 2014, amounting to approximately RMB322,695,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB74,951,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property,
plant and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set
out in note 15 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company's Articles of Association, the amount of
profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the amount
of profit determined in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to companies
established in the PRC (“PRC GAAP"). The Company’'s profit
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2013
was the retained profit of approximately RMB1,622,253,000 (2012:
approximately RMB1,534,956,000).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in

accordance with the following order:

() making up losses;

(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(iii)  if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect
of preference shares;

(iv) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and

(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v)
above for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in
accordance with the operational conditions of the Company and its
development requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’
general meeting for approval.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

DU Weidong (Chairman)
(appointed as an Executive Director on 5 June 2013 and
as the chairman of the board on 3 September 2013)

WU Yun (Chairman)
(resigned as the chairman of the board on 3 September 2013 and
as an Executive Director on 30 October 2013)

Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice Chairman)
GAQO Jianmin
Makoto TANAKA (General Manager)
Ryozo TSUKIOKA
LIU Guangming

(resigned on 5 June 2013)

PAN Yong
ZENG Jianjiang
(appointed on 30 October 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LONG Tao
SONG Xiaojiang
XU Bingjin
LIU Tianni

Supervisors:
MIN Qing

ZHOU Hong
LEI Bin
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

All the Directors other than Mr. DU Weidong, Mr. WU Yun, Mr. LIU
Guangming and Mr. ZENG Jianjiang were re-elected as Directors to
hold office from the date of the annual general meeting for 2012 to
the date of the annual general meeting for 2015.

Mr. DU Weidong was appointed as a Director to hold office from 5
June 2013 to the date of the annual general meeting for 2015.

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang was appointed as a Director to hold office from
30 October 2013 to the date of the annual general meeting for 2015.

All the Supervisors were re-elected and appointed as Supervisors to
hold office from the date of the annual general meeting for 2012 to
the date of the annual general meeting for 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the Directors that had been re-elected had renewed service
contracts and appointment letters with the Company for a term of
three years commencing on 6 June 2012.

Mr. DU Weidong had entered into service contract with the
Company on 5 June 2013, and Mr. ZENG Jianjiang also had entered
into service contract with the Company on 30 October 2013.

All the Supervisors that had been re-elected and appointed had
renewed or entered into appointment letters with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 6 June 2012.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has a service contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence
to the Company and considers that each of the independent non-
executive directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or the Supervisors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or Supervisor of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The details of Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executives’
remuneration and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements. All of the five highest paid
individuals of the Company for both years were Directors.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, there were 129 Shareholders recorded in
the register of shareholders of the Company and the Shareholders
other than a Director, Supervisor or chief executive of the Company,
having an interest or short positions in 5% or more of the relevant
class of the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests in the shares and short positions required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:



EEERE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BRRAERETERR(H) NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (Cont’d)

RARRMDOTEIBER Long positions in the shares of the Company:
HEBERIN
REBAHL EA A
Percentage of Bok
Sl FEROEE the relevant  Percentage of
RRAH Class of Number of & class of entire
Name of Shareholders Shares shares held  Capacity share capital  share capital
ERAE (5E) AR2R  RER 1243616403  EHAERA 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares 1,243,616,403 shares  Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%
Company Limited
ntiEBEHA e MER (HiR) 496,463,654  BHEEA 40.08% 20.00%
Isuzu Motors Limited Foreign shares (H shares) 496,453,654 shares  Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%
Allianz SE HE& 102,122,000  REHIEEER 8.24% 411%
(P3T)

Allianz SE H shares 102,122,000 shares Interest of a controlled 8.24% 411%

(Note)  corporation

Brat Note:
LATF ABAllianz SEFF#EB AR T 2 R H#E 2% The details of the interests held by Allianz SE in the Company are as follows:
A
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B3RS A
Total interests in shares
FEAEEE ERERREE EHES L HigHRE B %
Name of controlled corporation Name of controlling shareholders % controlled Direct interests Indirect interests
Allianz Asset Management AG Allianz SE 100% — 102,122,000
Allianz Global Investors GmbH Allianz Asset Management AG 100% — 101,600,000
RCM Asia Pacific Ltd. Allianz Global Investors GmbH 100% 98,240,000 —
Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Ltd. Allianz Global Investors GmbH 100% 3,360,000 —
Allianz Asset Management of Allianz Asset Management AG 100% — 522,000
America Holdings Inc.
Allianz Asset Management of Allianz Asset Management of 100% — 522,000
America L.P. America Holdings Inc.
Allianz Global Investors U.S. Allianz Asset Management of 100% — 522,000
Holdings LLC America L.P.
Allianz Global Investors Fund Allianz Global Investors U.S. 100% 522,000 —
Management LLC Holdings LLC
M EXHFEEEN  AATFIEHZE Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
T E-=F+_-_HA=+—HUE of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share
EETIMNABABAATDETRA capital of the Company as at 31 December 2013.
PREEMEMBAEERIOAE R
A o
EENHEHER NS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
RAFERN KRR ZEENE During the year, none of the Directors or Supervisors had any
ETENERNANBELEAGRS interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
A RE B EER AR - business of the Company.
R EMOLUMENT POLICY
FMEZEEe(H—RBHTEE LD The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
BT IENITESHK)BIERE the Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive Director
ZER BB EEEHEENE and four independent non-executive Directors) on the basis of their
BE ZEHMmE - merit, qualifications and competence.
ST EeRBEARAARIZEEX The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
EEESFEMNEBRETE®RZT Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
SEIERENANBIES Z2HMN - results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions
with (a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries BEEE#EEAR
DA ("EEERBEE"), EEERBEARAR ("ERERR
), ERERERARAR ("EEERER"), EEERAEE
RERQR ("EEERAE"), EEEREMERAAE ("EEE
R¥HK") and EEERBEARRKAR ("EEFERTBER"), b E
BE#EEARAT ("Qingling Moulds”), a joint venture which
the Company and Isuzu held 50.56% and 49.44% of its equity
respectively, (c) Isuzu, (d) Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine
Co.,Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Engine”), a jointly controlled entity formed
and jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (e) Qingling Isuzu
(Chongging) Automobile Sales and Service Co., Ltd (“Qingling Isuzu
Sales”), a jointly controlled entity formed and jointly controlled by
the Company and Isuzu, (f) Isuzu Qingling (Chong Qing) Engineering
Co., Ltd ("Isuzu Qingling Engineering”), an associate controlled by
Isuzu, and (g) Isuzu Qingling (Chong Qing) Autoparts Co., Ltd (“Isuzu
Qingling Autoparts”), a company controlled by Isuzu and invested
by the Qingling Group. Qingling Group and Isuzu held 50.10% and
20.00% of the issued share capital of the Company respectively
as at 31 December 2013. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the
above parties are connected persons of the Group. Details of the
continuing connected transactions with the parties are as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(@)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling
Group and its subsidiaries:

(i)

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into parts
supply agreements with Qingling Group, EEEEE,
EEERRE EEERSER, ERERAE, EEERER
and EEE$5ER respectively. The Company sells parts
and raw materials for the manufacture of automobile
parts . The price is determined based on the cost (or
plus a lower profit margin). The Company purchases
automobile parts. The purchasing price is determined
based on its actual cost or reasonable cost (whichever is
lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%
and is determined in the following sequence: at prices
not higher than market prices; if no comparable market
price, at prices based on actual costs or reasonable
costs (whichever is lower) incurred plus a profit margin
of not more than 8%, and in any event, at prices no less
favorable than those offered to independent third parties.
The payments shall be made within one month after
delivery.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)

(Cont'd)

The Company also renewed the agreements with such
companies on 17 December 2013, relating to the supply
of certain automobile parts by Qingling Group, EEE$
BiE EEERRE ERERER EEERAE EEE
SR8 FlandEE E 121518,

The purchasing price is determined: at prices not higher

respectively, to the Company.
than market prices; if no comparable market price,
at prices based on actual costs or reasonable costs
(whichever is lower) incurred plus a profit margin of
not more than 8%, and in any event, at prices no less
favorable than those offered to independent third parties.
The payments shall be made within one month after
delivery.

During the year, the amounts for the above continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of parts and raw materials for the manufacture
of automobile parts:
with respect to Qingling Group: RMB76,422,000;

with respect toE B E$%#8#E: RMB21,993,000;

with respect toE B E $%iiE: RMB12,406,000;
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(i)

(Cont'd)

with respect toEEE L EBEE

with respect toE i E§% H %

with respect to= i B §5 ¥8 &

with respect toE EE 5 iE5R

RMB2,682,000;

RMB11,263,000;

RMB2,834,000; and

RMB1,432,000.

Purchases of automobile parts:

with respect to Qingling Group: RMB105,226,000;

with respect toE F E 4151

with respect to=E & B $4 i1

with respect toE F E L E1E:

with respect toE EFE 4 B %

with respect toE EE 281

with respect toE B E #5555

RMB23,064,000;

RMB39,771,000;

RMB75,263,000;

RMB56,573,000;

RMB65,760,000; and

RMB9,628,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(i)

Qingling Moulds entered into moulds supply agreements
with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries BEEE$E
= ERERRE EEERZHE and EEERER on
23 December 2010, and Qingling Moulds also renewed
the agreements with such companies on 17 December
2013, relating to the provision of moulds and related
products and/or maintenance and processing services by
Qingling Moulds to the aforesaid companies, the price
is determined on normal commercial terms, if there are
no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and
reasonable to Qingling Moulds. The payments shall be
made within one month after delivery. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB7,736,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company entered into a chassis supply agreement
with the Qingling Group on 23 December 2010 (renewed
on 17 December 2013) relating to the sale of automobile
chassis and related components by the Company to
Qingling Group, the price is determined with reference
to the market price of chassis and related components
with a credit period of three to six months after the sale.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was RMB1,485,729,000.

The Company entered into a warehouse leasing
agreement on 23 December 2010 with Qingling Group
(renewed on 17 December 2013), relating to the lease
of warehouse by Qingling Group to the Company at a
consideration of RMB6,040,000 per annum, and the
settlement period shall not be more than 30 days. The
aforesaid price is set by the Board of the Company by
reference to the depreciation charged by Qingling Group,
on straight-line depreciation basis, on the relevant assets
during the year. It is set at prices not higher than market
prices; or at prices no less favorable than those offered

to Independent Third Parties.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Group and its subsidiaries: (Cont'd)

(v)

The Company entered into an equipment
agreement with EEERIBE,
Qingling Group, on 23 December 2010, (renewed on 17

leasing
a subsidiary of the

December 2013), relating to the lease of machineries for
further processing of casting and forging parts from E$%
#4E by the Company. During the year, the rentals (which
is RMB24,360,000) equals to the depreciation charged
plus relevant tax for the relevant machineries during the
relevant period. The Company had paid the rentals on
quarterly basis.

The details and amounts of the above connected
transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
during the vyear are set out in note 32(i) to the

consolidated financial statements.



FEBEXRS (&

(b)

31

REREAZEZRHERE
oy

s

ARNRRZE—FF+=H
T -HHEBEREEERT
HERZE  MARTR TR
T—=F+-_A+tHHEZ
RNABETZHES  RND
BREREAEmARARE
1R B 2 KB 2 on AN #E 1S T2 N
TARFS « AR & [ iR R
HERERMRINIRE &
BIE—BEERIET W
BATAELRR 5 HEHE
EEREBR—MBEAEBRREE
B AR R R A FEE &
RETE - MABERTBER
EREAMBYE=HIRE
ZIER - R —E AR
R RAFERN - RIFFH
BRASERHINeBRAARE
17,003,000 °

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling
Moulds:

The Company entered into a supply agreement with the
Qingling Moulds on 23 December 2010 (renewed on 17
December 2013), relating to the supply of moulds and related
products and maintenance and processing services by Qingling
Moulds to the Company, and the supply of raw materials and
processing services by the Company to Qingling Moulds, the
price is determined on normal commercial terms, if there are
no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and reasonable
to the Company, and the terms are no less favorable than
the terms available to independent third parties from Qingling
Moulds. The payment shall be made within one month after
delivery. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was RMB17,003,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

On 23 December 2010, the Company has entered into
an automobile parts and components supply agreement
with Isuzu whereby Isuzu provides the Company with
certain automobile parts and components produced
by Isuzu and which are required in the production
processes and the Company renewed the agreement
with Isuzu on 17 December 2013. As there are no
sufficient comparable transactions, the price of
the Company’s purchases of automobile parts and
components is determined by reference to actual or
reasonable costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a
profit margin of not more than 10%, and the payment
shall be made at the time of delivery. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB1,072,791,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

Significant continuing connected transactions with

Isuzu:

(Cont'd)

(ii)

On 23 December 2010, the Company entered into
an accessory sets and other automobile parts and
components supply agreement with Isuzu whereby the
Company provides Isuzu with certain accessory sets and
other automobile parts and components produced by
the Company and which are required in the production
processes of Isuzu and the Company renewed the
agreement with Isuzu on 17 December 2013. As there
are no sufficient comparable transactions, the selling
price of those parts and components is determined
by reference to actual or reasonable costs incurred
(whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of not more
than 10%, and the payment shall be made within 40
days after delivery. During the year, the amount of the
continuing connected transaction was RMB20,691,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

Significant continuing connected transactions with

Isuzu:

(Cont'd)

(i)

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the agreements with Isuzu entered on 17 August
1993, 11 November 1996, 20 February 2000 and 23
May 2008, for the transfer of technology and provision
of technical know-how and the permission to use the
trademark of Isuzu and the emblem by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and in the sales of 100P-N
series light vehicles and related parts and components,
140 TF/UC series vehicles, F series Chassis and related
700P3X series vehicles and
related parts and components. The price is set at an

parts and components,

initial fee (which has already been fully paid by the
Company to Isuzu), plus royalties, which is determined
by reference to the price of the parts and components
manufactured and sold by the Company pursuant to the
agreement, staff training fees and technical assistance
fees. The amounts shall be paid every half a year.
During the year, the amount incurred for the continuing
connected transaction was RMB55,886,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(c)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:
(Cont'd)
(iv)  On 23 December 2010, Qingling Moulds entered into

a moulds supply agreement with Isuzu relating to the
supply of moulds and related products by Qingling
Moulds to Isuzu, the price is determined on normal
commercial terms, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms fair and reasonable to
Qingling Moulds. The payment shall be made within
90 days after delivery. During the year, the continuing
connected transaction did not occur.

The details and amounts of the above connected
transactions with Isuzu during the year are set out in
note 32(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Engine:

On 23 December 2010, the Company and Qingling Isuzu

Engine entered into the following agreements (renewed on 17
December 2013):

The Supply Agreement, relating to the provision of
parts and raw materials of engines for assembling
and composing engine assemblies by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Engine, whereas Qingling Isuzu Engine
provides engine assemblies and their parts to the
Company for assembling and maintenance of automobile.
The selling/purchasing price is determined at actual costs
plus a premium of not more than 10%. Payments will
be made within one month after delivery. During the
year, the purchasing amount of the continuing connected
transaction was RMB1,332,707,000 and the selling
amount was RMB864,823,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Engine: (Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

The Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such
as water and gas supply, transportation, equipment
repair and maintenance, medical and hygiene and Three
Warranties) by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine.
The price is determined at actual costs plus a premium
of not more than 10% and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was

RMB2,005,000;

The Equipment Lease Agreement, relating to the lease
of leased equipment by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The monthly rent is determined with reference
to the depreciation value of the leased equipment flow
from the value of the leased equipment at the time
of valuation previously conducted by an independent
international asset appraisal firm and the market value
of the leased equipment, and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was
RMB50,208,000; and
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Engine: (Cont'd)

(iv)

The Factory Lease Agreement, relating to the lease
of land and factory premises by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Engine. The monthly rent for the periods
January to June 2013 and July to December 2013 were
RMB1,030,000 and RMB350,000, respectively, which
is determined with reference to the market rent of the
leased land and factories, and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days. The Company had also
entered into a supplemental agreement with Qingling
Isuzu Engine on 28 August 2013 to reduce the monthly
rent from RMB350,000 to RMB318,000 for the period
1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013. During the
year, the amount of the connected transaction was
RMB8,152,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions

with Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year are also set out in

note 32(iii) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(e)

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Sales:

On 23 December 2010, the Company and Qingling Isuzu

Sales entered into the following agreements (renewed on 17
December 2013):

The Pre-leasing Agreement, subsequent to which
the Company and Qingling Isuzu Sales entered into a
formal lease on 30 December 2010 pursuant to the Pre-
leasing Agreement, relating to the lease of leased land
and premises by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Sales.
The monthly rent is determined with reference to the
depreciation charged to such land and premises of the
Company plus relevant tax, and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days. During the year, the
amount of the continuing connected transaction was

RMB1,464,000;
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(e)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling

Isuzu Sales: (Cont'd)

(i)

(iif)

The Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such
as transportation, equipment repair and maintenance,
medical and hygiene and Three Warranties) by
the Company to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The price is
determined at actual costs plus a premium of not
more than 10%, and the settlement period shall not be
more than 30 days. During the year, the amount of the
continuing connected transaction was RMB500,000;

The Automobile and Parts Supply Agreement, relating to
the provision of automobiles and parts by the Company
to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The price is determined at
the market value of the automobiles or parts. The full
payments shall be made 30 days before the date of
delivery. During the year, the amount of the connected
transaction was RMB6,226,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions

with Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note

32(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Pursuant to the rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules, the auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the
Company to confirm that the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group:

1. have received the approval of the Board;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company;

3. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the annual caps of the relevant
transactions.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm
that the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favorable than terms available to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014

(f)  Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Engineering:

(i)

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Engineering entered
into the Factory Lease on 17 December 2013, relating
to the lease of the Engineering Factory Premises by the
Company to Isuzu Qingling Engineering. The agreement
shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all
relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations or 1 January 2014 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2016. The monthly rent is RMB73,800, and

the settlement period shall not be more than 30 days.

Before the commencement of the above contract, the
Company and Isuzu Qingling Engineering entered into a
temporary housing lease agreement. The lease term was
1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013. The monthly rent
was RMB34,900 and had been paid on quarterly basis. In
2013, the transaction amount was RMB314,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014 (Cont’d)

(f)  Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Engineering: (Cont'd)

(i)

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Engineering entered
into the Consolidated Services Agreement on 17
December 2013, relating to the provision of certain
services (including services such as water, electricity
and gas supply, vehicle rental, telecommunication and
medical and hygiene) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling
Engineering. The agreement shall be effective from
the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January
2014 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2016. The
consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable, and the settlement period
shall not be more than 30 days.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014 (Cont’d)

(f)  Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Engineering: (Cont'd)

(i)

(Cont'd)

Before the commencement of the above contract, the
Company and Isuzu Qingling Engineering entered into a
temporary consolidated services agreement (including
services such as water, electricity and gas supply,

vehicle rental, telecommunication and medical and
hygiene). The agreement term was 1 April 2013 to 31
December 2013. In 2013, the transaction amount was

RMB467,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected
transaction with Isuzu Qingling Engineering during the
year are also set out in note 32(v) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014 (Cont’d)

(9) Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Autoparts:

(i)

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered
into a supply agreement on 17 December 2013, relating
to the provision of parts of engines by Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts to the Company, and the provision of
automobiles, parts of engines and raw materials by the
Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The agreement
shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all
relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations or 1 January 2014 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2016. Prices for products provided shall not
be higher than the market prices and shall not be less
favourable than the prices offered to Independent Third
Parties. If there are no comparable market prices, prices
shall be determined based on the actual or reasonable
costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of
not more than 8%, The payments shall be made within
30 days after delivery.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014 (Cont’d)

(@ Continuing

connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling

Autoparts: (Cont'd)

(i)

The Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered
into the Consolidated Services Agreement on 17
December 2013,
services (including services such as water,

relating to the provision of certain
electricity
and gas supply, vehicle rental, telecommunication
and medical and hygiene) by the Company to Isuzu
Qingling Autoparts. The agreement shall be effective
from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with
all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January
2014 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2016. The
consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable, and the settlement period

shall not be more than 30 days.

Before the commencement of the above contract, the
Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into a
temporary consolidated services agreement (including
services such as water, electricity and gas supply,

vehicle rental, telecommunication and medical and
hygiene). The agreement term was 1 April 2013 to 31
December 2013. In 2013, the transaction amount was

RMB353,000.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014 (Cont’d)

(g0 Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts: (Cont'd)

(i) (Cont'd)

In addition, the Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
entered into a temporary housing lease agreement on
1 April 2013. The lease term was 1 April 2013 to 31
December 2013. The monthly rent was RMB34,900 and
had been paid on quarterly basis. In 2013, the transaction
amount was RMB314,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected
transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts during the
year are set out in note 32(vi) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
but effective from 2014 (Cont’d)

(h)  With Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling Engineering and

Isuzu Qingling Autoparts:

The Company, Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling
Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into
the Testing Agreement on 17 December 2013, relating
to the provision of certain testing services (including but
not limited to smoking tests, external property tests and
combustion analysis tests for full-loading and steady
rolling engines; temperature resistance tests and heeling
tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and vibration
tests for parts) by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine,
Isuzu Qingling Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts.
Prices for services provided shall not be higher than the
market prices and shall not be less favourable than the
prices offered to Independent Third Parties. If there are
no comparable market prices, prices shall be determined
based on the actual or reasonable costs incurred
(whichever is lower) plus a profit margin of not more than
8%. The payments shall be made within 30 days after
services are provided.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Other continuing connected transactions

(i)

The Company and Isuzu entered into the GXR/GXZ Technology
Licence Agreement, the FXZ Technology Licence Agreement
and the FYH Technology Licence Agreement on 21 December
2012, 25 January 2013 and 25 February 2013, respectively,
relating to the provision of technology and technical know-
how, staff training and technical support, and the permission
to use the trademark of Isuzu and the emblem by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sales of GXR/GXZ, FXZ and
FYH vehicles on an non-exclusive basis in the PRC, effective
from the date upon the parties’ signing of the agreement
until Isuzu shall cease to manufacture GXR/GXZ, FXZ and FYH
vehicles, or on the date as prescribed under the relevant rules
or regulations of the PRC (Note: normally 10 years), whichever
is earlier. Pursuant to the agreements, the Company will
have to pay initial fees (JPY600,000,000 for the GXR/GXZ
Technology Licence Agreement, JPY700,000,000 for the FXZ
Technology Licence Agreement and JPY600,000,000 for the
FYH Technology Licence Agreement, of which 40% of the
initial fees shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
approval granted by the relevant PRC authorities, 40% shall
be payable within 30 days from the date of completion of the
provision of technical know-how confirmed in writing by both
the Company and Isuzu, and 20% shall be payable within 30
days from the date of the bulk production of the GXR/GXZ, FXZ
and FYH vehicles confirmed in writing by both the Company
and Isuzu. The Company currently had paid 40% of the initial
fees.) and the Company will also have to pay royalties to Isuzu
in relation to the sale of each GXR/GXZ, FXZ and FYH vehicles,
which are calculated at 3% of the on-site added value of each
vehicle. During the year, as the Company has not commenced
the sale of GXR/GXZ, FXZ and FYH vehicles, the Company has
not paid any royalties during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 28 August 2013, the Company and Qingling Group entered into
the Asset Swap Agreement, relating to the Company's transfer
and disposal of its land use right of Land | to Qingling Group and
Qingling Group will transfer and dispose of its land use right of Land
Il to the Company. Upon completion, Land Il will be registered under
the name of the Company while Land | will be registered under the
name of Qingling Group. No additional consideration will be paid
by either the Company or Qingling Group, as the respective market
values of Land | and Land Il are equal (each being RMB9,949,100 as
assessed by the Independent Valuer).
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COMPLIANCE WITH DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

On 30 May 2012, the Company and Isuzu entered into the

Production Management Information System  Technology

Introduction  Contract, relating a “production information
management network system” that Isuzu will develop for the
Company to satisfy its need for production management, inventory
management and performance requirements, the consideration is
JPY444,444,380, of which 50% shall be payable within 30 days from
the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC authorities, 30%
shall be payable within 30 days from the date of passing tests and
inspections for phase | of the system, and 20% shall be payable
within 30 days from the date of passing tests and inspections for
phase Il of the system. The Company had settled the considerations
with Isuzu for phase | and phase Il on July 2012 and November
2013, respectively. Such transaction is subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement. As at the date of this Annual
Report, no announcement was made by the Company for the
Agreement entered into, but the Company intends to comply
with the relevant rules of the Listing Rules and/or take action in
accordance with further instructions given by the Stock Exchange.

Save as the above Production Management Information System
Technology Introduction Contract, the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
in respect of its connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.
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FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the five largest suppliers
accounted for 52.04% of the total purchases of the Group. The
largest supplier accounted for 25.50% of the total purchases.
Qingling Group, a jointly controlled entity of the Company and
a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu channels its
supply of parts and components to the Group, are included in the
five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in
the section “Connected Transactions” above. Other than disclosed
above, the Company’s directors and supervisors, their associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital), did not have any
interests in the Group's five largest suppliers for the year ended
31 December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers
were less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company
or its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not hold any designated
deposits or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be
collected upon maturity.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries and jointly
controlled entities had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 2,508 employees (2012:
2,633 employees). During the year, no material change was noted
for the number of employees or their remuneration policy. The
Group actively formulated and implemented various training to its
staff of all levels.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors
and supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and
supervisors have complied with the requirements of the Model
Code during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year, the Company had complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules.

Further information on the Company's corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from
pages 56 to 78.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public
float as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares are held
by the public throughout the year 2013.

REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS

The audit committee has reviewed with the management and
auditors of the Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2014 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP and
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.
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CHANGE IN DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, during the
period from 22 August 2013 (as the date of approval of the 2013
Interim Report of the Company) to 20 March 2014 (as the date
of approval of the 2013 Annual Report of the Company), changes
in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) are as follows:

1. Mr. DU Weidong resigned as the Deputy General Manager of
the Company with effect from 22 January 2014.

By order of the Board
DU Weidong
CHAIRMAN

Chongaing, the PRC
20 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that
good corporate governance practices are important to promote
investors’ confidence and protect the interest of our shareholders.
We attach importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our
corporate policies and standards, which together form the basis
of our corporate governance practices. The Board has adopted
sound corporate and disclosure practices, and is committed to
continuously improving those practices and cultivating an ethical
corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the
success and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
is responsible for the management of all the important issues of
the Company, including the duties of convening general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings,
determining the operating strategies and investment proposals of
the Company, formulating the plans of the Company for annual
financial budgets and final accounts, establishing and approving
the internal control and risk management systems and monitoring
the performance of the members of the senior management. The
directors shall make objective decisions for the interests of the
Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to
comply with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity
effective from September 2013.

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates
with appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those
who can express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates wiill
bring to the Board.

As at the reporting date, the Board of the Company is comprised
of 11 members, including 7 executive directors and 4 independent
non-executive directors. Independent non-executive directors

account for over 36% of the number of Board members.
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BEEEeNAHEAKIZRYZ T An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is
HEAEENSTEHIDOT - set forth below:
BEFEAE 11
Number of Directors
10 BT IE
BITES
Independent
9 :
Non-executive
Director
8
7
6
5
4 HITES
Executive
3 Director

40-49

0 Bty FiRAa 5 R34 5

Position Age Group ength of service

AT EITE S LY & £ - Mr. LIU Guangming, executive director of the Company, tendered
EmEOER  N—_ZE—=FHA his resignation as executive director and remuneration committee
REBTERRDGRITES LI member of the Company in May 2013 as he has reached the age of
ZEBEeRE s ARFIR _ZE—= 60. The Company assigned Mr. DU Weidong as executive director
FREFAFRAGEEMHRLE of the Company to replace Mr. LIU Guangming, who resigned as
BERANBIHITES  BEZZH executive director and remuneration committee member, through

EEMBEZCHATESRTHMNE election at 2013 AGM.
BEKEB -
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Having retired as the chairman of the board of Qingling Motors
(Group) Company Limited, the controlling Shareholder of the
Company, Mr. WU Yun, the former chairman of the Board, resigned
as the chairman of the Board and the nomination committee of
the Company in September 2013. The Board of the Company has
convened a meeting in relation to the foregoing and elected Mr.
DU Weidong as the chairman of the Board and the remuneration
committee of the Company. Further, the resignation of Mr. WU Yun
as executive director of the Company was accepted at the EGM
held on 30 October 2013 and Mr. ZENG Jianjiang was appointed as
executive director to replace Mr. WU Yun who retired as executive
director.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 11 directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. DU Weidong (Chairman)

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice-chairman)
Mr. GAQO Jianmin

Mr. Makoto TANAKA

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang

Mr. PAN Yong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Mr. XU Bingjin

Mr. LIU Tianni

Biographical particulars of the directors are set out in the section
headed "Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.
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Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the
directors, including independent non-executive directors, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
and their re-election is subject to a vote of the shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the existing independent non-executive directors
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the
related risks and control systems so as to achieve the development
objectives of the Company. Day-to-day management of the
Company is delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management, who are required to report back to the Board. All
the members of the Board have separate and independent access
to the senior management, and are provided with full and timely
information about the conduct of the business and development of
the Company, including monthly reports and recommendations on
significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees
under the Board, and will seek independent and professional
advices from them in respect of related matters.
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ETgeEREER BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
EEETHRTEERTARFA The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
M LREERE  WEFARK performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. During
KB -RN_ZTE—=F ARAAH 2013, the Company held 8 board meetings, and the attendance
MT8RESTEEE  NIASE record of each director at the board meetings in 2013 is set out
EFR-ZE-=—FHEEEEEH below:
B 42 8%
L) BERRLEEER/
SERY SRENE (&)
Attendance in Attendance by
= person/Number Proxy/Number of
Directors of Meetings Meetings (Note)
HITES
Executive Directors
RERE (7)) (RZE-=F+TA=THEE) 17 0/0
Mr. WU Yun (Chairman) (resigned on 30 October 2013) 70 0/0
HEREE (F8) (RZE-=F ANAEZHA) 5/5 0/0
Mr. DU Weidong (Chairman) (appointed on 5 June 2013) 5/5 0/0
REGEE (B2E) 17 1
Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice-chairman) 77 7
BERRE 8/8 0/0
Mr. GAO Jianmin 8/8 0/0
HHALE 8/8 0/0
Mr. Makoto TANAKA 8/8 0/0
AMR =54 4/4 414
Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA 4/4 4/4
kAL E (RZT—=F ALAEEE) 2/2 0/0
Mr. LIU Guangming (resigned on 5 June 2013) 2/2 0/0
BERTAE (WZF—ZF+AZ+HEZT) 2/2 0/0
Mr. ZENG Jianjiang (appointed on 30 October 2013) 2/2 0/0
RERE 8/8 0/0
Mr. PAN Yong 8/8 0/0
BYHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
EELE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LONG Tao 8/8 0/0
KRNI RAE 5/5 3/3
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang 5/5 3/3
BREREE 8/8 0/0
Mr. XU Bingjin 8/8 0/0
BIRREAE 8/8 0/0
Mr. LIU Tianni 8/8 0/0
i BEARIMATEREF—BZE= Note: Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where a

G BEERARTHEREFSE:
ANEELZAEMESRALFE

E@ @ o

8 8
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director is unable to attend the board meetings due to certain cause he may in
writing appoint other director to attend the board meetings on his/her behalf.
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At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters
including the Company’s annual and interim financial statements,
annual budget, proposals for final and interim dividends, annual
report and half-year report. At least 14 days’' notice is given to all
directors for all regular board meetings and all directors are given
the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The
agenda and board papers for each meeting are sent to all directors
at least 3 days in advance of every regular board meeting. All
minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company secretary
and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. WU Nianging and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed
as company secretaries to take charge of the affairs in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively on 28 April 1994. Mr. WU Nianging is a full-
time employee of the Company, and works as the chief accountant
of the Group. He is familiar with the daily routine of the Company.
The biographical details of Mr. WU are set out in the section
headed "Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer and a China
Appointed Attesting Officer in Hong Kong; and the senior partner
of Tung & Co.. He holds a B.A. degree in law and accounting from
the University of Manchester, the United Kingdom. He has over
20 years of experience as a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr.
TUNG is also the company secretary of a number of companies
listed in Hong Kong, and the independent non-executive director
of a company listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an
employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the Board
to advise on legal and governance-related issues. The primary
corporate contact person of the Company is Mr. WU Nianging, the
company secretary in charge of the PRC affairs.
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According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the persons who had
been working as company secretaries for the issuers on or before
31 December 1994 shall comply with the requirements in relation
to professional trainings set out in Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules
from the financial year beginning at 1 January 2017. However, as
confirmed respectively by Mr. WU Nianging and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu
Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for no
less than 15 hours during the year of 2013.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. WU Yun retired as the chairman of the Board of the Company
on 3 September 2013 and Mr. Du Weidong was appointed as the
chairman of the Board on the same date.

Mr. DU Weidong and Mr. Makoto TANAKA hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are
two clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the
operations of the Board, effectively planning the board meetings
and ensuring that the Board is acting in the best interests of the
Company. The Chairman shall proactively encourage directors
to fully participate in the Board's affairs and make contribution
to the functions of the Board. The Board, under the Chairman’s
leadership, has adopted good corporate governance practices and
procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain effective
communication with the shareholders.
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The General Manager is responsible for managing the business
of the Company, as well as formulating and implementing the
Company’s policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the
overall management of the Company. The General Manager of the
Company works in close association with other executive directors
and the administration team of each core business division, ensuring
the funding requirements of the business of the Company are
sufficiently met and at the same time closely monitor the operation
and financial results of the Company according to business plans
and budgets, and advise the Board on matters in relation to the
Company’s development. The General Manager of the Company
is required to keep close communication with the Chairman
and all directors to keep them fully informed of all substantive
matters relating to the Company’s business development, and
is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the
assigned duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company's performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
updates directors on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to
time, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.
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REERHENLE EFTHEC According to the records provided by the directors, a summary
E-—=F+_A=+—HILFE of the trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31
BEXEIOMENOT - December 2013 is as follows:

= gEHER

Directors Type of Trainings

HITES

Executive Directors

REAXE (MZF-=F+A=1RHED)

Mr. WU Yun (resigned on 30 October 2013)
HEREE (WZZ—=F ARREZT)
Mr. DU Weidong (appointed on 5 June 2013)
RESEE

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI

RRREE

Mr. GAO Jianmin

HEHALE

Mr. Makoto TANAKA

ARMR=%4

Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA

R\EE (RZTB—=F ALHEEHE)

Mr. LIU Guangming (resigned on 5 June 2013)
BRIEE (WZE-=FTA=1HEZHF)
Mr. ZENG Jianjiang (appointed on 30 October 2013)
BELE

Mr. PAN Yong

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
ERELE

Mr. LONG Tao

RINIEE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

BREREE

Mr. XU Bingjin

BIREEE

Mr. LIU Tianni

it - Note:

A HEGN SR/ AN ER L A
18 o

B. #EENER/EIMIERKiKE B.

EBRIEE -

C. BMEBHAE —REK EER C.
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Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to economy,
general business, directors’ responsibilities and the Listing Rules or the latest
development of other applicable regulatory requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board
committees to undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March
2012 with the terms of reference. The nomination committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors (namely
Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU
Tianni) and one executive director (namely Mr. DU Weidong). Mr.
DU Weidong, an executive director, serves as the chairman of the
nomination committee, and is responsible for the nomination of
the directors of the Company. The committee is delegated by the
Board to formulate the policies for the nomination of directors and
establish the procedures for the nomination of directors and the
standards for the selection and recommendation of directors. It is
also responsible for review of the structure, size and composition
of the Board and the assessment of the independence of the
independent non-executive directors. Directors shall be elected
at the shareholders’ general meeting for a term of three years.
Upon expiry of the term, a director shall be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, all directors are appointed for a specific term. Mr. LIU
Guangming resigned as executive director and Mr. DU Weidong
was appointed as executive director at the AGM held on 5 June
2013. Mr. WU Yun resigned as executive director and Mr. ZENG
Jianjiang was appointed as executive director at the EGM held on 30
October 20183.
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The nomination committee held three meetings in 2013. It reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive directors. And
advised the Board on the formulation of Board diversity policy.

The attendance record of the members of the nomination
committee at the first meeting is set out below:

HER/BBRY
Attendance/

K& Number of
Members Meetings
HITES
Executive Director
RELE (£E) RZT-=FAAZHET) 2/2
Mr. WU Yun (Chairman) (resigned on 3 September 2013) 2/2
HEREE (F8) (RZZ-=FAA=ZREZ{) N
Mr. DU Weidong (Chairman) (appointed on 3 September 2013) "
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
EELE 313
Mr. LONG Tao 3/3
RNIEAE 3/3
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang 3/3
mERERE 3/3
Mr. XU Bingjin 3/3
BIRREE 3/3
Mr. LIU Tianni 3/3
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April
2006. The remuneration committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive
Director (namely Mr. DU Weidong). The remuneration committee is
chaired by Mr. SONG Xiaojiang.

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate
goals and objectives; (c)(i) to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management; or (ii) to make recommendations
to the board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management; (d) to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the group; (e) to review
and approve the compensation payable to executive directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of their office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;
and (g) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors.

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration package of individual executive
directors and senior management.
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Members

HiTES

Executive Director

kL E (RZE—=F ARAET)

Mr. LIU Guangming (resigned on 5 June 2013)
HEREE (RZT—=F ARBEZT)
Mr. DU Weidong (appointed on 5 June 2013)

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
ERLE

Mr. LONG Tao

RNLEE ()

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)
mERERE

Mr. XU Bingjin

BIREEE

Mr. LIU Tianni
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

N
Number of persons

0 to 250,000 2
250,001 to 350,000 5

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to those
employees of other than directors and supervisors.

The remuneration committee held three meetings in 2013, during
which, it made recommendations to the Board on the remunerations
of the independent non-executive directors and the specific
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. The attendance record of the members of the
remuneration committee at the meeting held in 2013 is set out
below:

HEE/ERAY
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

7
"
2/2
2/2

313
313
313
313
3/3
3/3
313
313
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Members

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
EREE

Mr. LONG Tao

KNIZE ()

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)
REREE

Mr. XU Bingjin

BIRAEE

Mr. LIU Tianni
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit
committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
who possess appropriate commercial and financial skills and
experience to understand financial statements. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. SONG Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG
Tao, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties
to recommend the engagement and replacement of external
audit firms, oversee the Company's internal auditing system and
implementation, verify the Company's financial information and
disclosure, examine the Company’s internal control system, and
take charge and act as a communication channel between internal
and external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2013 to review the final
results for 2012 and the interim results for 2013. The attendance
record of the members of the audit committee at the meetings in
2013 is set out below:

HEE/EBRAY
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

212
212
2/2
212
212
2/2
212
212
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate
Governance set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code as the terms of reference for the Board to perform their
duties in relation to corporate governance on 26 March 2012, which
include developing and reviewing the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations
to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) for the Company’'s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During 2013, the Board has performed the corporate governance
function as mentioned above.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the
operation of all business units under the Company’'s management.
It shall appoint suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards
of all subsidiaries operating in key business areas, attending their
board meetings to oversee the operations of these companies.
The management in each business division is accountable for the
operations and performance of the business within its area of
responsibility.

The Company’s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group's assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable
laws and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information
are provided for the Company’'s management for publication
purposes and investment and business risks affecting the Group are
identified and properly managed.
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The Directors of the Company review the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries at least
once every year. The scope of a review includes financial control,
operation control, compliance control and risks management
functions. The Board will also consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualification and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. As
at 20 March 2014, the Board has completed the aforementioned
review for 2013 and the Board is of the view that the Company's
internal control system can properly and effectively safeguard the
investments of the shareholders and the assets of the Group.

PRICE-SENSITIVE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company
is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules and has established the
inside information/price-sensitive information disclosure policy with
close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors and
supervisors. After specific enquiry with all the directors and
supervisors, all directors and supervisors confirmed that they have
completely complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout 2013.
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Supervisors

BRRAKHENES

Representatives of the shareholders
REXL (£)

Ms. MIN Qing (Chairman)

Azt

Ms. ZHOU Hong

BIRRHENES
Representatives of the staff and workers
Mr. LEI Bin
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee comprises three members, two of
whom are representatives of the shareholders (namely Ms. MIN
Qing and Ms. ZHOU Hong) and one of whom is the representative
of the staff and workers (namely Mr. LEI Bin). Ms. MIN Qing serves
as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. During 2013, the
Supervisors of the Company exercised their right of supervision
in accordance with the laws to protect the legal interests of the
shareholders, the Company and the employees. The details of the
work of the supervisory committee are set out in the Supervisory
Committee’s Report in this annual report.

The supervisory committee held two meetings in 2013. The
attendance record of the members of the supervisory committee at
the meetings in 2013 is set out below:

HEE/ERRY
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings

212
2/2
212
2/2

2/2
2/2
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its PRC and international
auditors respectively. In order to maintain their independence,
these accountants do not take on non-audit work. The work the
external auditors are engaged to perform must produce measurable
efficiency and added value to the Company and should not cause
adverse effect on the independence or independent standing of
their audit function. The remuneration of the auditor is disclosed in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial
year and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements,
appropriate accounting policies are adopted and applied and the
PRC accounting standards and systems and International Financial
Reporting Standards are observed, to give a true and fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Company. The
statement of the auditors about their responsibilities on the Group's
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 79 to 80.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual
financial results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing
meetings for people from the investment community at regular
intervals, using the opportunity to promote investor relations and
two-way communication. The Company, through the investor
relations manager, responds to the information requests and
inquiries from the investment community. The Company also
publishes information such as the Company's announcements and
circulars on its website (www.gingling.com.cn) in a timely manner
under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Directors
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Executive Directors
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Mr. WU Yun (resigned on 30 October 2013)
REGAE

Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI
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Mr. GAQ Jianmin
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Mr. Makoto TANAKA
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Mr. Ryozo TSUKIOKA
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Mr. DU Weidong (appointed on 5 June 2013)
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Mr. PAN Yong
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The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual
general meeting in which the Chairman and directors will answer
questions about the Company's business raised by shareholders.
The Company distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders
in a timely manner for their inspection.

The attendance record of the members of the Board at the annual
general meeting in 2013 is set out below:

HER/BREASRE
Attendance in
person/Number

of Meetings

Mr. ZENG Jianjiang (appointed on 30 October 2013) N/A

BUFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
BELE

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIEHE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

REEEE

Mr. XU Bingjin

IR EE

Mr. LIU Tianni
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the financial year, the Company did not make any
amendment to its constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of
the Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the
objects of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written
request(s), the Board shall convene an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting of shareholders as soon as possible. The
number of the shares held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on
these shares held by the shareholders as at the date of the written
requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition,
the requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four
months upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A
meeting convene by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are
to be convened by the Bond.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be born by
the Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the
Company to such directors who were in default.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
general meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be
determined by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have
definite topics to be discussed and specific matters for resolution
and shall be in line with the laws and administrative regulations.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold 3% or more of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice
of shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the
temporary proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a
notice of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not
make any amendments to the proposals included in the notice or
add any new proposals.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director is made available in the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company in writing through Mr. WU Nianging, the
company secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. WU Nianging

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District,
Chongging, the People’s Republic of China
E-mail: gloffice@gingling.com.cn

TEL: (86) 23-65264125

Fax: (86) 23-68830397
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The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of
the Company, where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’
questions.

In 2014, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into
enhancing the standard of its corporate governance according to the
ongoing regulatory changes, development trend of the Company,
and feedback opinions from shareholders, ensuring a stable and
healthy growth for the Company while adding value to shareholders.

By Order of the Board
WU Nianqing
Company Secretary

Chongging, the PRC
20 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF QINGLING MOTORS CO., LTD.

Qingling Motors Co., Ltd.
(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company established
in the People's Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 190, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
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Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20 March 2014



mEeEBEmNRHM
%EH&E%

B

EY

W
HEMRA

£

HiA

HieFEREX
DERBERA
EEER

MEER
DEBER AR (BE)

DIERERAET

BRBEAT & A

FrEB i

FROBMRE G B

THALREEERENRFA B :

SREAEF

81

F+-A=+—BLFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Other gains and losses
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research expenses
Share of profit (loss) of an associate
Share of profits less losses of
joint ventures

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Profit and total comprehensive income

attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share

Bz BZ

—E-=f —E-—_—F
+ZB=+-BH +=RA=+-H
LtEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012

/f3 AREFT AREFTT
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000

(sE=5)

(restated)

5, 6 5,782,887 6,145,756
(4,905,392) (5,391,930)

877,495 753,826

127,364 149,067

9,630 6,086
(383,953) (398,352)
(165,439) (151,589)
(30,406) (20,708)
313 (349)

7,249 8,070

9 442,253 346,051
7 (64,632) (50,378)
377,621 295,673

371,681 290,701

5,940 4,972

377,621 295,673

14 RMBO.15 RMBO0.12




mE B RR R CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R-T—=4+-A=+—6H AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

—E-=§ —E-Cf —E—-f
+=B=+-H t=A=t—-H +=A=+-H
31/12/2013  31/12/2012  31/12/2011

Wizt AREFIT AREFT ANREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(mE=7) (ZE=51)

(restated) (restated)
EREBEE Non-current assets
% BEREE Property, plant and equipment 15 1,144,232 1,354,388 1,486,299
ik Prepaid lease payments 16 43,426 44,809 46,192
REME Investment properties 17 39,022 49,967 40,654
R AR Intangible assets 18 43,641 20,961 29,371
N YN - T Interest in an associate 19 6,297 5,984 —
REERF 2R Interests in joint ventures 20 399,334 392,085 384,015
RICHIEE B Deferred tax assets 21 2,299 2,330 2,330
WEEIERE A ETRN A Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets 22 50,681 20,294 —
1,728,932 1,890,818 1,988,861
nEBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 23 795,068 696,594 883,423
FEUREE B K At B M 30 Trade and other receivables 24 824,276 868,273 903,136
B ER Bills receivable 25 2,648,726 2,564,434 2,415,438
BNLHHEE Prepaid lease payments 16 1,383 1,383 1,383
REBABB=M@A 2 BTER Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 26 2,625,304 2,560,318 3,150,655
RITHEBR KRR R Bank balances and cash 27 1,206,765 1,042,836 800,810
8,101,522 7,733,838 8,154,845
nEaE Current liabilities
JEMERT - ENRBRAMBEMFE  Trade, bills and other payables 28 2,136,133 2,063,261 2,566,651
FERTHIE Tax liabilities 27,446 20,018 31,560
2,163,579 2,083,279 2,598,211
REBEERE Net current assets 5,937,943 5,650,559 5,556,634
BEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 7,666,875 7,541,377 7,545,495
RAR #E Capital and reserves
B Share capital 29 2,482,268 2,482,268 2,482,268
BARE R F#E Share premium and reserves 4,887,569 4,764,115 4,771,285
ARAE=RA AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 7,369,837 7,246,383 7,253,553
el 3 Non-controlling interests 297,038 294,994 291,942
R Total equity 7,666,875 7,541,377 7,545,495
EQHEEE190HE VG A ERE The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 190 were
N-ZE-—mME-"A-_+OKEEs approved and authoris_ed for isgue by the Board of Directors on 20
@RISR T b R E March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:
EREREE
BEEE PAN Yong DIRECTOR
BRIES ZENG Jianjiang DIRECTOR
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At 1 January 2012
Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year
Appropriation for the year
Unclaimed H shares
dividend of prior year
2011 final dividend
paid (Note 13)
Dividend paid by
a subsidiary to non-
controlling interests

At 31 December 2012

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Appropriation for the year

2012 final dividend paid
(Note 13)

Dividend paid by a
subsidiary to
non-controlling interests

At 31 December 2013

(a)

83

BRARBCEFER —BEHNARKE
572,206,000 T(—ZE— -4 : AR
¥ 572,206,0007T) K IE - LR A E
EEERIERBEERRREKL
AMEERSEER)ERRA(E
REBDRERAIBEERAA(E
RDBARDRNEEFBEUER
— NN FEHEN—FH - LBRER
A) X 3 B BT 3% 17 1,500,000,000 f% #Y
T & A R #1,500,000,000 7T 2 #8

D o

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

NAREEEAEERE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FERER

R

Equity

attributable

AEMRE fAEAEE to

BAKE HBAAKE  Statutory Discretionary  RERA non-
TS Share Capital surplus surplus  Retained #:F  controlling  BHAH
Share capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total interests Total equity
ANEETE ARETT AGEFT  ARETr  AREFr  AREFT  ARETr  AREFr AREFx
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(i) (WiE1)  (HEtz)
(note (al) (note 11) (note 12)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 843,914 2,347 1,587,880 7,253,553 291,942 7,545,495
— — — — — 290,701 290,701 4972 295,673
— — — 28,834 — (28,834) — — —
— — — — — 1 1 — 1
= = = = —  (297,872)  (297.872) —  (297,872)
— — = — — - = (1,920) (1,920)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 872,748 2,347 1,551,876 7,246,383 294,994 7,541,377
— — — — — 371,681 371,681 5,940 377,621
= = = 36,157 = (36,157) — — —
— — — — —  (248227) (248227 —  (248227)
— — = — — - = (3,896) (3,896)
2,482,268 1,764,905 572,239 908,905 2,347 1,639,173 7,369,837 297,038 7,666,875
Note:

(a) The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of approximately

RMB572,206,000 (2012: RMB572,206,000) which represents the excess of the
value of the net assets immediately before the establishment of the Company
injected into the Company by E#2)58 (£E) AR2A A (“Qingling Group”) and
B35 5B AR AT ("Qingling”) as part of the reorganisation in 1994 which was

approved by the State Administration of State-owned Assets, over the nominal

value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued upon establishment of the Company of

RMB1,500,000,000.



FERERER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Bz y2
—E-=F “E--F
+=RA=+-B t=B=t-H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
(&E31))
(restated)
LExK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR T A& Al Profit before tax 442,253 346,051
EfEHE - Adjustments for:
MBBA Interest income (92,592) (95,930)
BRARBARER ZHE Interests in relation to discounted bills receivable = 129
AEEERRERE (&F) Share of loss (profit) of an associate (313) 349
AMERERERT Share of profits less losses of joint ventures (7,249) (8,070)
¥ BERXERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 281,488 277,989
B EESRH Amortisation of intangible assets 8,410 8,409
BT LA S 8 Release of prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
RENEME Depreciation of investment properties 13,969 7,495
HEWE - BiEKkEEER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 357 1
ER W FE Net foreign exchange gain 2,806 1,219
EEBCHBA KEERRER Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 650,512 539,025
FERD (#m) (Increase) decrease in inventories (98,474) 186,829
FEMCER TR I B FE MR IR R A Decrease in trade and other receivables 43,997 34,863
eSSl Increase in bills receivable (84,292) (148,996)
EREES - BNRBRREMERZIEEM (F4)  Increase (decrease) in trade, bills and
other payables 58,584 (519,915)
REEBHMERS Cash from operations 570,327 91,806
AT PEEE Income taxes paid (57,173) (61,920)
REXBMERLFE NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 513,154 29,886
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Placement of fixed deposit with banks
Withdrawal of fixed deposit with banks
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Prepayments for acquisition of non-current assets

Interest received

Investment in an associate

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowing obtained in relation to
discounted bills receivable
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Unclaimed H shares dividend of prior year

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY

Effects of exchange rate changes on the
balance of cash held in foreign currencies

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER, represented by
bank balances and cash

BZ Bz
—B-=F —E-CF
+=ZB=+-H +=A=t-H
LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ANREFT ANEEFT
RMB'000 RMB'000

(&E31))

(restated)
(2,576,604) (2,844,448)
2,506,766 3,424,458
(60,663) (152,128)
(61,477) (20,294)
97,444 106,257
= (6,333)

238 7
(94,296) 507,519

— 5,631
(248,227) (297,872)
(3,896) (1,920)

— 1
(252,123) (294,160)
166,735 243,245
1,042,836 800,810
(2,806) (1,219
1,206,765 1,042,836




e BHRRMKME
BE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—HItFEE

1. R

ARBBRFEARKME(TH
BEMKZOFINEGERNDE
RABBEERNREEHARS
FIBERAR L™ - AR A Z M
MERMUARTREXMH ST
BEEMNERE P R
— R ARBAREMBRAARA
EER(AEEDNIEXEBS
AERHER+HRENHASE
ZYeEE K RE -PARER
BREAMTEZH R -

ARAZEBRERREERR A
RELEE(—RRPEEEKL
ZEBALE) -

HEMBRRUAARFINEER
ARBE(TARBDZS -

86

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. GENERAL

The Company is a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited
company established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhong
Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District, Chongging, the PRC. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries and joint ventures
(the “Group”) are the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks,
multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty
trucks and automobile parts and accessories.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is
Qingling Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging,
the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 11 and

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Consolidated Financial Statements,

Joint Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities: Transition Guidance;
Consolidated Financial Statements
Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Fair Value Measurement
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Cont’d)

HKAS 19 (as Employee Benefits
revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as Separate Financial Statements
revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as Investments in Associates

revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

and Joint Ventures
Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive Income
HK (IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of a Surface Mine

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 Consolidated
Financial Statements, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, HKAS 27 (as revised in
2011) Separate Financial Statements and HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with
the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance. HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable
to the Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures, and the
guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly
Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers,
has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011). HKFRS
11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control should be classified and accounted for.
Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types of joint arrangements
— joint operations and joint ventures. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKFRS 11 is determined based on the rights
and obligations of parties to the joint arrangements by considering
the structure, the legal form of the arrangements, the contractual
terms agreed by the parties to the arrangement, and, when
relevant, other facts and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the
net assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 had three types
of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
operations and jointly controlled assets. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on
the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a joint arrangement that
was established through a separate entity was classified as a jointly
controlled entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (Cont’d)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and joint
operations are different. Investments in joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method (proportionate consolidation is no longer
allowed). Investments in joint operations are accounted for such that
each joint operator recognises its assets (including its share of any
assets jointly held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the
sale of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator
accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues and
expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in accordance
with the applicable standards.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (Cont’d)

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
classification of the Group’s investments in joint arrangements in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 11. The directors of
the Company concluded that the Group's investments in E$H 1
$(EE)EFEAR AT ("Qingling Isuzu Engine”) and E$ A1+
(BEE)THEEERBSER AR (“Qingling Isuzu Sales”) which were
classified as jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 and were
accounted for using the proportionate consolidation method, should
be classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11 and accounted for
using the equity method. The change in accounting of the Group's
investment in Qingling Isuzu Engine and Qingling Isuzu Sales has
been applied in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions
set out in HKFRS 11. The initial investments as at 1 January 2012
for the purposes of applying the equity method are measured as
the aggregate of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities
that the Group had previously proportionately consolidated (see the
tables below for details), which is regarded as its deemed cost at
initial recognition. Also, the directors of the Company performed
an impairment assessment on the initial investments as at 1
January 2012 and concluded that no impairment loss is required.
Comparative amounts for 2012 have been restated to reflect the
change in accounting for the Group's investments in Qingling Isuzu
Engine and Qingling Isuzu Sales.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

Summary of the effect of the above changes in
accounting policy

The effects of changes in accounting policies described above
on the results for the current and prior year by line items are as
follows:

Impact on profit or loss for the year

BETSIRHLEE
Year ended
ZE-=fF —E-—"F
+=ZA=t—-HB +=A=1+-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Decrease in revenue (28,878) (40,054)
Decrease in cost of sales 9,739 22,630
Decrease in other income (6,379) (6,571)
Increase in other gains and losses 1,047 1,616
Decrease in distribution and selling expenses 922 1,200
Decrease in administrative expenses 10,407 10,871
Decrease in research expenses 3,951 646
Increase in share of profits less losses

of joint ventures 7,249 8,070
Decrease in income tax expense 1,942 1,592

Net change in profit for the year — —

Owners of the Company _ —
Non-controlling interests = =

There is no impact on basic and diluted earnings per share amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(Cont'd)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’'d)

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity
The effect of the change in accounting policy described above on

the financial position of the Group as at the end of the immediately
preceding financial year, i.e. 31 December 2012 and 1 January 2012,
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Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
(non-current)
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Interest in an associate
Interests in joint ventures
Deferred tax assets
Prepayments for acquisition
of non-current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Bills receivable
Prepaid lease payments (current)
Bank deposits with original
maturity more than
three months
Bank balances and cash
Trade, bills and
other payables
Tax liabilities

Total effects on net assets

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total effects on equity

is as follows:

R=B—=%

+t=A=+-8H

(REZ5)
As at R=B—=F
31/12/2012 BERUKERE +=-A=t—-H
as previously ZAIE115 As at
reported HKFRS 11 31/12/2012

FHEE (&=51)

Adjustments as restated
ARETFT AEETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1,455,686 (101,298) 1,354,388
44,809 — 44,809
49,967 — 49,967
25,570 (4,609) 20,961
5,984 — 5,984
— 392,085 392,085
2,330 — 2,330
20,294 — 20,294
827,546 (130,952) 696,594
813,207 55,066 868,273
2,565,038 (604) 2,564,434
1,383 — 1,383
2,749,331 (189,013) 2,560,318
1,097,921 (55,085) 1,042,836
(2,096,599) 33,338 (2,063,261)
(21,090) 1,072 (20,018)
7,541,377 — 7,541,377
7,246,383 — 7,246,383
294,994 — 294,994
7,541,377 — 7,541,377
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Cont’d)

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
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Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments (non-current)

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Interests in joint ventures

Deferred tax assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Bills receivable

Prepaid lease payments (current)

Bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months

Bank balances and cash

Trade, bills and other payables

Tax liabilities

Total effects on net assets

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total effects on equity

R-B—=F
—A—H
(REZ5)
As at R-B——F
01/01/2012 BRPBRE —HA—H
as previously ZERIE115 As at
reported HKFRS 11 01/01/2012
HE (& =51)
Adjustments (as restated)
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1,607,576 (121,277) 1,486,299
46,192 — 46,192
40,654 — 40,654
34,675 (5,304) 29,371
— 384,015 384,015
2,330 — 2,330
904,881 (21,458) 883,423
910,332 (7,196) 903,136
2,415,438 — 2,415,438
1,383 — 1,383
3,326,687 (176,032) 3,150,655
848,928 (48,118) 800,810
(2,559,957) (6,694) (2,566,651)
(33,624) 2,064 (31,560)
7,545,495 — 7,545,495
7,253,553 — 7,253,553
291,942 — 291,942
7,545,495 — 7,545,495
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology for
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement of comprehensive income
is renamed as a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and an income statement is renamed as a statement of
profit or loss. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in either a
single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the existing option to
present items of other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax.

The title of consolidated statement of comprehensive income has
been changed to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
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HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Amendments to
HKAS 36

Amendments to
HKAS 39

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?
Mandatory Effective Date of

HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures?®

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?



e B3 Wk MR
BE-T-=F+-A=t+—BALEE

2. ERFAIREETEEM
B EER ([ FBMBR
HER ) (8

EEMERRERZHTRES
AEBMBEREER (R

BRMBREER  HEEAF

CHES HEEA
—E——%%F
—F-=F
BHZFE
B¢

BB TSRS LR @A’
F958

BB RS LR EEELER’
F14%

55 (BEREBRE  HH
ZEZE®)
—ZEENR

1T RZF-—WF—A—BHHARFABRZEF
JE 5 ) A 3K

2 R-ZF-—NFELA—-BRUERABZF
JE HA ) A 3K

3 AITRA —BHEEREAERER
B 75 ¥ 5 2 RI 55 95 1O () £ i B S BROR
BEREE

4 A-FT-WFELA - BRERRIEHF
RHMER - BREE BRI

5 B_T-—RF-—A-BRZERAKZE
D FREB B IRE LR BT ER

ARREZTAHEAFER - £

AlzETh2ES T AEE
AV BRRENEATE -

97

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Cont'd)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (Cont’d)

Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?®

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HK (IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

1  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
2  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when

the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised

4  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1
January 2016

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
new standard, amendments to standards and interpretation will
have no material impact on these consolidated financial statements
of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out as below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the date
when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint venture,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale. Any retained portion of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture that has not been classified as held for sale is accounted for
using the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

Upon disposal or partial disposal of the Group's interest in an
associate or a joint venture in which the Group lost significant
influence or joint control and discontinued the use of equity
method, any retained interest that is within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value on that date, the difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture at the date,
and the proceeds from disposing of such interest (or partial
interest) in the associate or joint venture and the fair value of
the retained interest is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that associate
or joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the Group lost
significant influence or joint control over the investee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or
an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement of the previously held
interest or the retained interest to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets), profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate or
joint venture are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income from
a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’'s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress and
specialised production facilities and moulds, over their estimated
useful lives after taking into account of their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified
in relation to specific production processes are depreciated by
reference to the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds after taking into account of their estimated residual values.

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the assets (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation
is recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property,
the transfer is made when there is a change in use, evidenced by
end of owner-occupation.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is released over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income, if any, in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined contribution plans where the Group's
obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate
and joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary difference
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Taxation (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effective of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expensed from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Research and development expenditure (Cont’d)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables of the Group are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Loans and
receivables are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the loans and receivables, the estimated
future cash flows of the loans and receivables have been negatively
affected. The objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables such as trade
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Cont’d)

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For loans and receivables measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’'d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade, bills and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be incurred
to completion and disposal. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste or competitor actions in response to
severe consumer product industry cycles. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of inventory net of allowance
for obsolete inventories is RMB795,068,000 (net of allowance for
obsolete inventories of RMB14,472,000) (2012: RMB696,594,000,
net of allowance for obsolete inventories of RMB14,677,000).

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. The impairment
may arise as a result of changes in debtors’ financial position. As
at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables is RMB824,276,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts
of RMB4,595,000) (2012: carrying amount of RMB868,273,000, net
of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB4,595,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont'd)

Depreciation basis of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than specialised production
facilities and moulds) are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values. The Group’'s management determines the estimated
useful lives of its property, plant and equipment. The estimates
of useful lives are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge in the
year where the useful lives are less than the previously estimated
lives and will write off technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Specialised production
facilities and moulds are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds, after taking
into account the estimated residual values. The Group assesses
annually the expected production volume of these facilities and
moulds, taking into account the lifecycle and technical advantage of
products. If the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will impact the depreciation
charges in the current year in which the estimates change and in
future periods.
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BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

5. W= 5. REVENUE

WamiEAEERIINBEFHEHEES Revenue represents revenue arising on goods sold by the Group
mhEE A 2 Weas 30 0 BR AT H0 K 8E to external customers, net of discounts and sales related tax. The
EHEFRE AERREFTEE following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major
mERKESTAT : products:

S Bz
—E-=F —E-_F
+=ZA=+t—-B +=A=t+-H
LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000

(& E=51)

(restated)
HERERAE Sales of trucks and vehicles 5,345,319 5,549,579
HE TET R Sales of automobile parts and accessories 437,068 596,177

5,782,887 6,145,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of five
categories of products — light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles,
pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile
parts and accessories and the chief operating decision makers
(e.g. the Company's executive directors) also review the segment
information by these categories to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance.

Principal business segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of
light-duty trucks
Multi-purposes — manufacture and sales of
vehicles multi-purposes vehicles
Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of
pick-up trucks
Medium and — manufacture and sales of
heavy-duty trucks medium and heavy-duty trucks
Automobile parts and — manufacture and sales of
accessories automobile parts and accessories



e B R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
6. oHER(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(i) DM ERESE (i) Segment revenue and results
REERERFEBEREES DD The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
MR operating segment:
HE-_Z—=F+=-A=+—H For the year ended 31 December 2013
HFE
AE
SMERE THRENE  SHRIH
qAFRE Multi- KFZ Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

ANEETL  ARMTT  AEETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Dbk Segment revenue 2,566,640 14,343 1,766,417 998,419 437,068 5,782,887
PEEE Segment result 147,068 620 167,848 66,449 2,241 384,226
EhERER AR Central administration costs (86,529)
FEMA Interest income 92,592
HitA Other income 44,402
AMEHE AR Share of profit of an associate 313
AEEEARRF Share of profits less losses of joint ventures 7,249
R A& Profit before tax 442,253
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(i) Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (restated)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

AE

SYRAE PHERERE  BHRHMH

#AERE Multi- KFZ Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
AREFT  AREFT  ARKFT  AREfr  ARETT  ARKFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Segment revenue 2,736,052 44,048 1,755,441 1,014,038 596,177 6,145,756
Segment result 77917 2,138 153,169 16,091 1,084 250,399
Central administration costs (67,222)
Interest income 95,930
Other income 59,223
Share of loss of an associate (349)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures 8,070
Profit before tax 346,051

and performance assessment.

allocation of central administration costs,

There have been no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
result represents the profit earned from each segment without
interest income, other
income, share of profit of an associate and share of profits less
losses of joint ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision makers for the purposes of resources allocation
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BE T =Ft+_A=1+—HItFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
6. DIER(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(i) »2PEERAE (ii) Segment assets and liabilities
AEBEEREBREED HBD The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
T operating segment:
RZE—=F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2013
RE
SUERE PHRERE  BHREH
#HFRHE Multi- K+E Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated

AEETE  ARETE ARETL ARETT ARETT  AREFZ
RMB'000  AMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AE Assets

PHEE Segment assets 2,188,835 4,612,462
Pz EEREE Interchangeably used assets

between segments

— 0% BERSHE — property, plant and equipment 592,634

— B tiHe — prepaid lease payments 44,809

—FE — inventories 164,669
REME Investment properties 39,022
R A E BATE Prepayments for acquisition of

non-current assets 50,681

NN P 3 Interest in an associate 6,297
iNEX-YNGIPA: 3 Interests in joint ventures 399,334
ROGRRBITER Bank deposits and bank balances 3,832,069
At A p i AR Other unallocated assets 88,577
SRGEEE Consolidated total assets 9,830,454
afE Liabilities

AHEE Segment liabilities 227,386 429,210
TR EBAEHR - BNRERAENTER Unallocated trade, bills and other payables 1,706,923
At AT ARz BE Other unallocated liabilties 27,446
RABARE Consolidated total liabilities 2,163,579
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(if) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

Assets
Segment assets

Interchangeably used assets
between segments
— property, plant and equipment
— prepaid lease payments
— inventories

Investment properties

Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets

Interest in an associate

Interests in joint ventures

Bank deposits and bank balances

Other unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

Unallocated trade, bills and other payables
Other unallocated liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

As at 31 December 2012 (restated)

AE
SYRAE PHERERE  BHRHMH
#AERE Multi- KFZ Mediumand Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and &8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Consolidated
AREFT  ARHFT  ARHFT  AREFr  ARETT  ARKFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2,149,998 10,895 901,909 1,261,668 247,012 4,571,482
687,425
46,192
183,223
49,967
20,294
5,984
392,085
3,603,154
64,850
9,624,656
251,636 3,767 131,305 71,593 21,694 479,995
1,583,266
20,018
2,083,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(if) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

° All assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
properties, prepayments for acquisition of non-current assets,
interests in an associate, interests in joint ventures, bank
deposits and bank balances and other unallocated assets held
by the head office; and

° All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated trade, bills and other payables and other
unallocated liabilities of the head office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(ifi) Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2013

OTHER INFORMATION
Amount included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:
Additions of property, plant
and equipment
Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment
properties
Release of prepaid lease
payments

OTHER INFORMATION
Amount included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or

segment assets
Additions of property, plant
and equipment
Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment
properties
Release of prepaid lease

AE

SYRAE pHRENE  SHRHH

AHERE Multi- K+E Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  Heavy-duty parts and TR )
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories Unallocated Consolidated
NEEFT  AEEFT  AREFr  AREFr  AREFr  AREFr  AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20,623 - 8,695 13,690 - 31,943 74,951
— — - — - 50,681 50,681
2,610 - - 5,740 - - 8410
139,010 — 57,472 81,573 — 3433 281,488
- - - - - 13,969 13,969
- - - - - 1,383 1,383

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (restated)

AE

SMEARE hARENE  BHRHH

aiFRE Multi- KEE Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty ~ purposes Pick-up  Heavy-duty parts and TSR e
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Unallocated Consolidated
ARETT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT  AREFRL
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
61,436 — 5,836 8,185 — 87,436 162,893
- - - - - 20,924 20,924
2,669 - - 5,740 - - 8409
131170 — 58,843 84,420 — 3,556 277,989
- - - - - 749 7,49
- - - - - 1,383 1,383

payments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(iv) Geographical information

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group
amounting to RMB1,726,633,000 (2012: RMB1,888,488,000) are
located in the PRC and substantially all of the sales of the Group are
also made to customers located in the PRC. The Group has made
limited export sales to countries outside the PRC which accounted
for approximately 0.36% (2012: 0.71%) of the Group's revenue.

All of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to
property, plant and equipment are located in the PRC for both years
presented.

(v) Information about major customers

No revenue from a single external customer other than Qingling
Group and its subsidiaries contributed 10% or more of the Group's
revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue from
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,614,761,000
(2012: RMB1,721,009,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Bz Bz
—E-=F —E--F
+=A=+-B +t=A=t-H
LFEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AEETT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(e =51)
(restated)
Current tax charge 63,831 50,378
Under-provision in prior years 770 —
Deferred tax charge (Note 21) 31 —
64,632 50,378
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the Notice of Certain Tax Policies for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Region (Cai Shui [2011]
No. 58), a company located in the western region of the PRC and
engaged in the business encouraged by the PRC government
is entitled to a preferential Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) rate
of 156%. According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax
for Implementation of Exploration and Development of Western
Region (Guo Shui [2012] No. 12), a company located in the western
region of the PRC is entitled to apply to the tax authority for the
preferential EIT rate of 15% if certain conditions set out in the
notice are satisfied. The Company and EEEEH#EEAR AR
(“Qingling Moulds"”), a subsidiary of the Group have applied and
obtained the approval from the relevant authority in respect of the
application of the preferential EIT rate for years ended 31 December
2012 and 2013. Although the Encouraged Industries Catalogue in
the Western Region is not yet issued by the government authorities
as of the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements,
in the opinion of the directors, the Company and Qingling Moulds
are able to satisfy the conditions set out in relevant notices and the
requirement of the Encouraged Industries Catalogue and therefore
continue to apply the preferential EIT rate of 15% in the current
period.

EEESFEF L (“Qingling Technical Center”), a subsidiary of the
Group is subject to 25% (2012: 25%) EIT rate for the years ended
31 December 2013.
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BE_ZE—=F+-"A=1+—HItFEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

7. BB XH (& 7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
AEBEAZHRERGAEERRK The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per
NEMmEERZERZ GFHE N consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
TZ#% : income as follows:

Bz Bz
—E-=f —E--f
T=ZRA=+—-B t=A=t-H
LLFE ILFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  AERETT

RMB’000 RMB’000
(L=51)
(restated)
BR 35 Al A Profit before tax 442,253 346,051
NEBFEREI16%E 2 KB Tax at the applicable income tax rate
(ZF—ZF :15%) of 15% (2012; 15%) 66,338 51,908
ERETAELNHZBAZHBYE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 785 601
BEFERETR Under-provision in respect of prior years 770 =
B R RSB BN M 2k R R B (M) Additional tax benefit and refund applicable
to the Group (note) (2,280) (1,139)
HENBARTRABEZYE Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary 183 167
AEBENRCEA)BRZYE Effect of share of (profit) loss of an associate (47) 52
PEEERRRNZTE Effect of share of profits less losses of
joint ventures (1,087) (1,211)
AEEZHE Tax charge for the year 64,632 50,378
Hazt - Note:
RBARET R ROER - AREENER AR Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research nature are
HEEINEAERAZB0%ME  BE—"T—= deductible at 50% of the cost incurred additionally. The related tax benefit amounted to
E+-B=4+—BILEE  HEBBEH S RMB2,280,000 (2012: RMB1,139,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

SREAARE2280,000T (=2 — 4 : A
F#1,139,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding
company, Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the
contributions made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution
pension scheme administered by the municipal government in
respect of the staff of the Group. According to such scheme, the
Company shall pay an amount annually, calculated at a percentage
of the total wages of the staff, to a retirement fund administered
by the municipal government. The amount paid during the year
under such arrangement amounted to RMB19,026,000 (2012:
RMB21,006,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

Salaries and other payments and benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Total staff costs (including directors” and
supervisors' remuneration (note 10))

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of investment properties
Release of prepaid lease payments
Minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of rented premises and
production facilities
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
Interests in relation to discounted bills receivable
Auditor's remuneration

and after crediting:

Sales of scrap materials

Compensation from suppliers

Interest income from bank deposits and balances

Income from renting of investment properties

Less: direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental income
during the year

Income from renting of moulds and

tooling equipment
Government grant
Net foreign exchange gain

Bz Bz

—E-=F —E-CF
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H

IEEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

ANEEF ANEEFT

RMB'000 RMB'000
(&=51)

(restated)

122,452 124,931

19,026 21,006

141,478 145,937
357 1

8,410 8,409

281,488 277,989

13,969 7,495

1,383 1,383

37,941 33,426
4,896,982 5,383,521

— 129

3,468 3,468

334 1,519

— 17,130

92,592 95,930

10,244 13,824

(1,803) (2,478)

25,104 25,104

25 53

9,987 6,087
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10. EE -ESRTHARMN
£

Executive directors

Gao Jianmin
Pan Yong
Makoto Tanaka

Ryozo Tsukioka
Naotoshi Tsutsumi

FHES Independent non-executive directors
eE Long Tao
Song Xiaojiang
XuBingjin
Liu Tianni
22He Supervisors' remuneration
il Min Qing
B Zhou Hong
B Lei Bin

B hEESHN2EEENERRRE
EoUYHFMEER (R —BRTE
ER=BBILFRTEFAN
% o

ERHEAEETRARFITHRE
BOMEXBEBEZHMEERE
EETHAZRSMER 2RBEM
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NARRBE) Du Weidong (appointed on 5 June 2013)
A=TRE) Wa Yun [resigned on 30 October 2013)

B (R=F-=F/ARARME) Liu Guangming (resigned on 5 June 2013)

—$-=FTA=tREZR) Zeng Jianjlang (appointed on 30 October 2013)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

Pl 53 hEke
W) iR [ BiER
#ER  Performance R $4R  Performance b 57
e 4l related  Retrement ~—Z-=F -t ] related  Retirement ~ =%-=%
Salaries and incentive benefit it Salaries and incentive benefit Eh
He other  payments scheme 2013 ne other  payments scheme 212
Fee benefits (note) - contributions Total Fee benefits note)contributions Total

A\EEFL  NERTT  ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT  ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

= k] = 1 349 = = = = =
= 20 - 1 30 = K = 11 a0
= k] = 1 349 = 37 = 1 8
— 141 - 5 146 - 337 - " 348
= k] = 1 349 = 37 = 1 8
= 56 - 3 59 = = = = =
= m = 1 284 = = = = =
= 1770 - 6 183 = 1404 = 4 1,448
120 = = = 10 10 = = = 120
120 = = = 10 120 = = = 120
120 = = = 10 10 = = = 120
120 = = = 10 10 = = = 120
480 = - = 180 180 = = = 480
— Kl 80 12 126 - 34 80 " 125
= b 6 7 0 = 9 68 7 104
= b 6 1 110 = 9 89 11 109
= i) 2 3t 340 = ) a7 9 38
480 1662 217 I 2656 180 149 a7 7 2266

Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined by reference to the
individual performance of the supervisors and approved by the Remuneration
Committee (composed of an executive director and three independent non-

executive directors).

Mr. Makoto Tanaka is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

No directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: nil).

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group for both years were
directors.

11. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation
of 10% of profit after tax for the year of the Company, calculated
in accordance with relevant Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP") and the Articles of
Association of the Company. The appropriation may cease to apply if
the balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund has reached 50%
of the registered capital of the Company. According to the Articles
of Association of the Company, statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses or to increase capital. The
Company may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve fund by way
of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount of statutory
surplus reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less than
25% of the registered capital of the Company. The amount shall be
submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for approval.

12. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund in
2013 (2012: nil). The balance of RMB2,347,000 in the discretionary
reserve fund was the amount appropriated by a subsidiary,Qingling
Moulds, in previous years at a percentage of the profit after tax of
the respective years in accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of
Association of Qingling Moulds.



= e B3 R M

BE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—HItFEE

13- Bﬁ/%\

RERERBDRLZBE :

“E-_FREKREBIR
—BRAR®0.107T

&t

(Z2—ZF: ZZ——FRERS -

Bk —8RARK0.127T)

EEoREsExNEaEz_F—

= &

TZA=+t—RLEFERHER

EEBRAR®KOIIT -
322,695,000 (=& — =

HKARE

COEL

E-_T-——_f+=ZHA=+—H
IFFERAKRES TR ARKOI0
7T £ A B #248,227,0007T) -
BRBRRNEERR BTG

HERTAE °

140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

13. DIVIDEND

Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
2012 Final, paid —
RMBO0.10
(2012: 2011 Final, paid —
RMBO.12) per share

Year ended
31/12/2013
AEETT

RMB'000

248,227

8z
—E-—_F
+=A=+-H
tEE

Year ended
31/12/2012
ARET T
RMB'000

297,872

A final dividend of RMB322,695,000 or RMB0.13 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: final dividend
of RMB248,227,000 or RMBO0.10 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2012) has been proposed by the directors and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual

general meeting.
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BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

14. ERERF 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ARG ERFFEAEBEERER The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
BABETHER G E - owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Z7 Earnings

Bz Bz

=g =it —E-—CF
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-H
LLFE LLFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AEETFT — AEETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BURErEERERRF 2 &F Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
(KRB EmREAEGEEERF]) per share (Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company) 371,681 290,701
5 & E Number of shares
S BZ
—E-=F —E-C-F
+=ZA=+t-B +=ZA=1+-AH
LEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
‘000 ‘000
B ESREARF 2 RHEE Number of shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268
R EFEEEERMBEITENZ There were no potential ordinary shares outstanding in both years
AR EAESEYE s LB - presented.
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B % #R Ak B EE

HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HILEE

CoST
At 1 January 2012
(restated)
Additions
Transfer from construction
in progress
Transfer to investment properties
Disposals

At 31 December 2012
(restated)
Additions
Transfer from construction
in progress
Transfer to investment properties
Disposals

At 31 December 2013

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2012 (restated)
Depreciation provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2012
(restated)

Depreciation provided for
the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2013

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012
(restated)

At 31 December 2013

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

LR B
BERKE £ERZG
Moulds,  Furniture, RE  EEIR

#F  plantand fixtures and Motor Construction @zt
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
AEETE  AREFT  AEETT  AREFT  AGBETT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
545,547 3,531,062 68,761 26,529 146,430 4,318,329
3,190 4,071 175 1,781 153,676 162,893
101,675 125,397 = = (227,072) =
(16,808) = = = = (16,808)
— — — (79) = (79)
633,604 3,660,530 68,936 28,231 73,034 4,464,335
— 30 27 4,934 69,960 74,951

10,022 109,682 — — (119,704) —
(3,024) = = = = (3,024)
(1,345) (970) (320) (1127) — (3,762)
639,257 3,769,272 68,643 32,038 23,290 4,532,500
308,085 2,442,152 60,961 20,831 — 2,832,029
25,052 250,222 1,801 914 — 277,939
= = = (71) = (71)
333,137 2,692,374 62,762 21,674 — 3,109,947
26,181 252,451 1,713 1,143 — 281,488
(1,076) (789) (287) (1,015) = (3,167)
358,242 2,944,036 64,188 21,802 — 3383268
300,467 968,156 6,174 6,557 73,034 1,354,388
281,015 825,236 4,455 10,236 23,290 1,144,232
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and
moulds, are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual value, as follows:

Estimated Residual
useful lives value
Buildings 20 years 10%
Moulds, plant and machinery, 5 to 10 years 10%
other than specialised
production facilities and
moulds
Furniture, fixtures and 5 years 10%
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds included in moulds,
plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds,
plant and machinery which are for general production purposes are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 5 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of moulds and
machinery that has been leased out was RMB317,606,000 (2012:
RMB457,142,000).

As at 31 December 2013, moulds, plant and machinery with original
cost of RMB2,214,504,000 (2012: RMB1,973,499,000) have been
fully depreciated but still in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

16. AN TS

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

—8-=f -B--f
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ANREFT ANBEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEEMBEA RS G : The Group's prepaid lease payments represent:
PAFR B AR EA 5 A Land use right in the PRC hold under
medium-term 44,809 46,192
HREMEAINA Analysis for reporting purpose as:
FERBDEE Non-current asset 43,426 44,809
MEEE Current asset 1,383 1,383
44,809 46,192
17. REME 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
8z Bz
“E-=F —E-_F
+=ZA=+-B +=A=+-H
ILEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ANREFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A COST
m—R—H At 1 January 142,770 125,962
BREVE  BELEE Transferred from property, plant and equipment 3,024 16,808
R+=ZRA=1+—H At 31 December 145,794 142,770
weE DEPRECIATION
n—HA—H At 1 January 92,803 85,308
FEMERE Depreciation provided for the year 13,969 7,495
R+=ZA=1+—H At 31 December 106,772 92,803
BRMEIE CARRYING VALUES
R+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 39,022 49,967
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

The above investment properties are situated in the PRC held under
medium term leases and are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over 20 years, after taking into account the estimated residual value
of 10%.

The fair value of the investment properties cannot be reliably

measured as the comparable market transactions are infrequent and
alternative reliable estimates are not available.

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EEEREAL
RiiEEE Production
Technology management ast
transfer fees system Total
ANEBEFT AREFT ANREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B {E COST
RZZ——F—A—H (B=5]) & At 1 January 2012 (restated) and 285,593 — 285,593
“2——F+-fA=1—H (FEF5]) at 31 December 2012 (restated)
NE Additions = 31,090 31,090
RZE—=F+-f=1+—H At 31 December 2013 285,593 31,090 316,683
B AMORTISATION
R-E——&—-f—R (K&3) At 1 January 2012 (restated) 256,223 — 256,223
FERE Provided for the year 8,409 — 8,409
RZZ-—ZF+ZA=1—H (£S3) At31 December 2012 (restated) 264,632 = 264,632
FERE Provided for the year 8,410 = 8,410
R-E-=F+-A=1-H At 31 December 2013 273,042 = 273,042
RHE CARRYING VALUES
RZZ——F+-F=1—R (&%) At 31 December 2012 (restated) 20,91 = 20,961
R=E-=F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2013 12,551 31,090 43,641
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

Payments of technology transfer fees, lump sum royalties under
technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited
(“Isuzu”), the substantial shareholder of the Company, are
capitalised as intangible assets and are amortised over the license
period ranging from ten years to thirteen years, commencing from
the use of the technologies in production. Continuing royalties
payable to Isuzu under the technology transfer agreements are
charged to profit or loss as and when incurred.

The increase in the original carrying amount for the current period
consists of the acquisition of a production management system in
December 2013, which has an estimated useful life of ten years and
is expected to generate economic benefits to the Company in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2013, intangible assets with an original cost of
RMB176,964,000 in aggregate (2012: RMB176,964,000) have been
fully amortised but still in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Details of the Group’s interest in an associate are as follows:

= =it —E-—C—&
+=A=t—-B +=A=t+-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB'000

Cost of investment in an associate
Unlisted investment 6,333 6,333
Share of post-acquisition losses of an associate (36) (349)
6,297 5,984

RZE—=ZFR_FT——F+= As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the
A=+—8  A&BER T35 following associate:
NARHEAER
AEEREZ
Bhl BE2
Proportion RERELH
BEEFA PR TEEEMEY of equity Portion of
ERA® Form of Place of Principal place  interests held  voting power FE#K
Name of entity entity establishment of operation by the Group held Principle activities
A HRER (EE) RalpAvE HE FiE 25% 25%  HiiRE
AEREMAEBR  Incorporated  The PRC The PRC Technical

AR ( [E+H8RER
Rl )

Isuzu Qingling
(Chongging)
Engineering Co.,
Ltd. (“Isuzu Qingling
Engineering”)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

19. REEE QT 2R (E) 19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)
AEEBE AR EESBE Summarised financial information

;AT associate is set out below:

BERE Total assets

BERE Total liabilities

BEFE Net assets

TEENEBMENREEFE

Wz e

FREh (BR) &

KEEDEEEDREN (8

148

Group's share of net assets of an associate

Total revenue

Total profit (loss) and total comprehensive
income for the year

=)

Group's share of profit (loss) of an associate

respect of the Group's
—E-=F —E-C-F
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
25,791 26,539
601 2,604
25,190 23,935
6,297 5,984
Bz BZ
—E-=F —E--F
t=A=+-B +t=B=t-H
LFE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
9,252 —
1,255 (1,398)
313 (349)
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EEEXZREFRE

RAELRZERERA
AETRE
DERELERRREH

BERATREFEDEA=-ZFZT
FRAKY  FEREEHEK
A EHRE HEFMEXRA
84,260,000 JT + A~ A @& [A] E 8%
i+ 85 %% B) i F E 42,130,000 3%
7T (49 A R #300,060,0007T) ° 7
AAIEA TS RIFEEE BT
f% 2R 250% -

BHEATHREHER_ZTN\EFEA
ARY TEREHER T M
e aE Rt  HAME RS
4,600,000 % 7T © A A 7] [A F §2
A + 9% 8 & )£ & 2,300,000 3% 7T
(#9 A R#15,714,000 ) ° &K
AIEATROAFAEEE ETR
RN Z250% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures are as follows:

—E-=F —E-C-F
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AEETT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
Cost of investment in joint ventures

Unlisted investment 315,774 315,774

Share of post-acquisition profits less
losses of joint ventures 83,560 76,311
399,334 392,085

Qingling Isuzu Engine was established in May 2007, and is
principally engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant
parts. The registered capital is US$84,260,000, and the Company
contributed US$42,130,000, approximately RMB300,060,000 to
Qingling Isuzu Engine. Each of the Company and Isuzu held 50% of
its issued capital respectively.

Qingling Isuzu Sales was established in September 2008 for and
is principally engaged in the purpose of selling of Isuzu brand
automobiles and parts. The registered capital is US$4,600,000,
and the Company contributed US$2,300,000, approximately
RMB15,714,000 to Qingling Isuzu Sales. Each of the Company and
Isuzu held 50% of its issued capital respectively.



mEMBEHRRMNE
HE_T-—=%+-_A=+—HBIEE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

20. REELE R () 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)
RZE—=FR-ZF—Z=F+= As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had interests in the
A=+—8 X&BERTI&E& following joint ventures:
EEEER
REEREZ
RS Ll
Proportion B2
ERRERN of equity RER-ELLH
Form of AMRLBE FTEEEMI interests  Proportion of
ERAE business Place of Principal place heldby  voting power FEEK
Name of entity structure establishment of operation the group held Principal activities
BRI EH Ak i HE FiE 50% 50%  EEERABBI R
Qingling Isuzu Engine  Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC SUE
Manufacture
of engines and
relevant parts
BERATREE AL HE HiE 50% 50% SHER TR
Qingling Isuzu Sales  Incorporated  The PRC The PRC AE RIS
Selling of Isuzu
brand
automobiles
and parts

BELCEUNRREMAEEE
BRESHKEEERXAAKER
RHBE N BB B E ARG

TERELXIUBERSR

AEEZEIBRARLELELHMBEE
HELZEF T - T5I 8% & #
MEERERBEEEV B RS EL
REZAELEVBRRMZD
ZEHE e

ARELERUETREMBRRA
RAEEAIIE -
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There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures
to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay
loans or advances made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

Qingling Isuzu Engine

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

The above amounts of assets and liabilities
include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade
and other payables and provisions)

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

—E-=F —E-—F
t=A=t-B t=A=+-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETFT AEEFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
659,706 747,576
189,389 205,971
81,606 205,362

43,408 109,533

3,229 2,144

8= B2
ZE-=F —E——F
+=ZA=t—-B +=A=t+-H
LLFE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFTT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
1,378,241 1,633,617
18,086 18,064
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BE_ZE—=F+-"A=1+—HItFEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

20, REEDE R (H) 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)
EBRE R (E) Qingling Isuzu Engine (Cont'd)
FlRFEENBREUATEIEA The above profit for the year include the following:

Bz Bz
—E-=f —E--f
T=ZRA=+—-B t=A=t-H
LLFE ILFE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  AERETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

WER#H Depreciation and amortisation 36,243 45,622
FEBA Interest income 13,072 13,015
PSR Income tax expense 3,884 3,186
LM BENBERRN G S MK The above summarised financial information to the carrying amount
RERANEERRNER A THED of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine are recognised in the
2 ERIREE consolidated financial statements:

—E-=F —E——&
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013  31/12/2012
ARETT — ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

BT EEK s EESE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Engine 767,489 748,185
AEERER A TREEIE 2 BEEEE B Proportion of the Group's ownership interest

in Qingling Isuzu Engine 50% 50%
PARBRGFED 2 A% Adjustments for unrealised profit 2,303 2,912
AEERERATREDHR 2 ERRTE Carrying amount of the Group's interest

in Qingling Isuzu Engine 386,048 377,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont’d)

Information of Qingling Isuzu Sales that are not individually

material

The Group's share of (loss) and total
comprehensive income

Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Sales

Proportion of the Group's ownership interest
in Qingling Isuzu Engine

Adjustments for unrealised profit

Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Qingling Isuzu Sales

Bz Bz
—E-=F —E-CF
t=A=t-R t=A=+-H
LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
(3,588) (1,924)
26,943 30,379
50% 50%

(186) (110)

13,286 15,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current year:

REBREE
FERE Impairment of
Allowance  property, plant Fo
for inventories and equipment Total
ARETFT AEETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE——F—HA—Ak At 1 January 2012 and at 2,202 128 2,330
2+ A=1—H 31 December 2012
AAER Charge to profit or loss (31) — (31)
RZZ—=FTZHA=+t—H  At31 December 2013 2,171 128 2,299

2. WIBFERBEEZRAN

I

R-E—=%+-_HA=+—8 "
BRI REIERDEE (RIF
A BERMHFR 2 URER) 2E
F3RIE -

R-_FB——_F£+_H=+—8"
MRS RIERBIHERDEE (B
EEREERRUMHE) 2BMK
I o
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22. PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-
CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the balance represented prepayments for
acquisition of non-current assets including initial fees for technology
licences of heavy-trucks.

As at 31 December 2012, the balance represented prepayments
for acquisition of non-current assets including the production
management system software.
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BE-—T-—=F+-A=1+—-RLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

23. 78 23. INVENTORIES

—E-=F —E-C-F
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013  31/12/2012
ARETT — AEETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

(E51)
(restated)
R Raw materials 583,304 416,723
TR m Work in progress 29,970 28,668
2 Finished goods 196,266 265,880
809,540 711,271
W FERE Less: allowance for inventories 14,472 14,677
795,068 696,594
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of trade and
other receivables includes amounts due from B4 9HE (£ E)H
R F] (“Qingling Group” — ultimate holding company of the
Group), subsidiaries of Qingling Group, Qingling Isuzu Engine,

Qingling Isuzu Sales, A TRERER)AEFITHAZEREA
A)("lsuzu Qingling Engineering” — associate of the Group),
and A THRERER)IBEZFHERAFT(“Isuzu  Qingling
Autoparts” — associate of Qingling Group) Co., Ltd as follows:
= =it —E-—C—&
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(e =51)
(restated)
Qingling Group 633,368 529,718
Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 87,458 100,337
Qingling Isuzu Engine 5,543 116,875
Qingling Isuzu Sales — 1,082
Isuzu Qingling Engineering 272 2,504
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts 471 —
727,112 750,516

Receivables from Qingling Group of RMB633,368,000 (2012:
RMB529,718,000) were in trade nature, aged within 6 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(@) (Cont'd)

Receivables from subsidiaries of Qingling Group were in trade
nature, included in the balance was RMB47,041,000(2012:
RMB78,218,000) aged within 6 months, RMB5,209,000 (2012:
RMB1,406,000) aged over 6 months but within 1 vyear, and
RMB35,208,000 (2012: RMB20,713,000) aged over 1 year.

Receivables from Qingling Isuzu Engine were in trade nature and
aged within 3 months.

Receivables from Qingling Isuzu Sales were in trade nature and
aged within 3 months.

Receivables from Isuzu Qingling Engineering were in trade nature
and aged within 3 months.

Receivables from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts were in trade nature and
aged within 3 months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade

receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented

based on invoice date of the Group at the end of the

reporting period, which approximated the respective revenue

recognition dates is as follows:

Within 3 months
Between 3 to 6 months
Between 7 to 12 months
Between 1 to 2 years
Over 2 years

Trade receivables less allowance for
doubtful debts

Other receivables

Prepayments

As at 31 December 2013,

—E-=F —E-CF
t=A=+-B +t=B=t-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  AERETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
(m&3)
(restated)
459,059 749,949
261,816 29,410
5,209 1,427
35,5617 27,620
11,5652 1,400
773,153 809,806
6,819 6,431
44,304 52,036
824,276 868,273

trade and other
RMB3,723,000 (2012: RMB9,270,000)

receivables of
and RMB20,000 (2012:

RMB20,000) were denominated in Japanese Yen (“JPY"”) and
United State Dollar (“USD") respectively, other than the functional

currency of the respective group entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b)  (Cont'd)

Before accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an
external credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and assign credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed twice a year. 98%
(2012: 99%) of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under the external
credit scoring system used by the Group.

The credit period granted on sales of goods is 3 to 6 months.

Included in prepayments is an amount of approximately
RMB34,356,000 (2012: RMBA44,370,000) related to the advance
payment to independent suppliers of steel.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade
receivables of the Group which are past due but not impaired,
net of allowances, is as follows:

—B-=f C-B-C-f
+=A=t-B +=A=t-A
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT — ARETT
RMB000  AMB'000

Overdue by:

1 to 6 months 5,209 1,427
6 months to 1 year 35,517 27,620
Over 1 year 11,552 1,400

52,278 30,447

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors
with a carrying amount of approximately RMB52,278,000 (2012:
approximately RMB30,447,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss, of which RMB40,417,000 (2012: approximately
RMB22,119,000) is due from subsidiaries of Qingling Group. The
Group does not consider any risk on subsequent collections, and all
of these receivables are expected to be settled in the coming year.
The Group does not hold any collaterals over these balances.



e B R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-—T-—=F+-A=1+—-RLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

24. BEWRA K H 1 B WA 24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(&)
RBEREME The allowance for doubtful debts
—E-=F —E-C-F
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FENRFLRER Balance at beginning and end of the year 4,595 4,595
REEREBERBEHRAARE Allowance for doubtful debts are provided for individually impaired
4595000 (ZFE —=ZF : AR trade receivables with an aggregate balance of RMB4,595,000
% 4,595,000 7T ) %8 3R B 2 & W (2012: RMB4,595,000) which are in financial difficulties.

ER (BN BN EE) -

25, EWEE 25. BILLS RECEIVABLE
MEHBAR  AEBZEKER At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills
R MTa T - receivable of the Group is as follows:
—E-=f —E-C-F
+ZB=t-H t=ZA=t-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ANREFT ANEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(s==5)
(restated)
MEBARA Within 1 month 878,650 887,709
122187 Between 1 to 2 months 419,595 450,380
2% 3 A Between 2 to 3 months 214,663 370,191
3Z6{8A Between 3 to 6 months 1,135,818 856,154
2,648,726 2,564,434
P EIRERE AIRITA N ZE - All the above bills receivable are guaranteed by banks and their
HEFHH M FI0KE180K maturity periods ranged from 30 to 180 days.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

26. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY MORE
THAN THREE MONTHS

The amounts represented bank fixed deposits with original maturity
of 6 to 12 months and carried fixed interest rates. Their respective
interest rates are ranging from 3.00% to 3.30% (2012: 2.75% to
3.575%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2013, fixed deposits of RMB4,805,000 (2012:
RMB4,965,000) were denominated in USD.

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.0001% to 0.35% (2012: 0.0001% to 0.35%) per annum. The bank
balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

below:

—E-=F —E-—F

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  AERETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

(m&3)
(restated)
usD 5,848 7,552
JPY 9,438 13,942
European Dollar (“EUR") 6,758 10,293
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 29 31
Great British Pound (“GBP") 3 3
22,076 31,821




e B R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-—T-—=F+-A=1+—-RLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

28. BB -EBNRBERH 28. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
ftb & 14 K E

(a) MRIEHER  EBRHERRGS (a) At the end of the reporting period, the balances of trade
HeEENAE TR  BRE payables included the amounts due to Isuzu, subsidiaries of
BzHBARIRERA T Qingling Group and Qingling Isuzu Sales as follows:
HERRERT

—E-=F —E-C-F
t=A=1t-A t=A=t+-*H
31/12/2013  31/12/2012
ARETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

(&5751)

(restated)
ATt Isuzu 69,612 93,653
EREENEAR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 7,723 17,681
BRATREE Qingling Isuzu Sales 129 —

77,464 111,334

FHliFEAEE S YL « EEH These amounts are in trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and the
28 KBUHNEEHTHRS credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.
Z6{EA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

28. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’'d)

(b) At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of trade,
bills and other payables of the Group is as follows:

—B-=f C-B-C-f
+=A=t-B +=A=t-A
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT — ARETT
RMB000  AMB'000

(=31)

(restated)
Within 3 months 1,446,427 1,095,178
Between 3 to 6 months 131,591 362,658
Between 7 to 12 months 26,909 38,755
Over 12 months 17,439 31,501
Trade and bills payables 1,622,366 1,528,092
Selling expenses payables 264,780 233,307
Value added tax payables 76,532 76,271
Discounted bill financing — 5,760
Other payables 55,482 51,874
Advance from customers 116,973 167,957

2,136,133 2,063,261

The balance of advance from customers at the end of the
reporting period represents the amount received in advance for the
subsequent sales of trucks and vehicles and automobile parts and
accessories.

At the end of the reporting period, trade and other payables
amounted to RMB70,267,000 (2012: RMB85,915,000) are
denominated in JPY.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

29. SHARE CAPITAL

—£--“%-8-H-
—E-CF
+ZB=+-BkK
—E-=F
+=A=t—H
01/01/2012,
31/12/2012

and 31/12/2013
AEEFTT
RMB'000

Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

ik
Number of shares
—E--“%-8-H-
—E-CF
+=ZA=+-BR
—E-=F
+=ZA=1+—H
01/01/2012,
31/12/2012

and 31/12/2013
Tk

‘000

Shares of RMB1 each
— Domestic shares 1,243,616
— H shares 1,238,652

2,482,268

Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited
as fully paid up in Renminbi by the PRC government and/or entities
established in the PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for
in Hong Kong Dollar and credited as fully paid up in Renminbi by
persons other than the PRC government and/or entities established
in the PRC.

Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with
each other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
capital of the Company during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained
profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.



e B R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
31. €T A 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) €EWMITEEHR (a) Categories of financial instruments

—B-=f C-B-C-f
+=A=t-B +=A=t-A
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  ARETT
RMB000  AMB'000

(=51
(restated)
TREE Financial assets
EHRERAE Loan and receivables
FEUR TR Trade receivables 773,153 809,806
Hit R IR Other receivables 6,819 6,431
ES Bills receivable 2,648,726 2,564,434
[RE|H BB A =8 A 2 RITTF 5K Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 2,625,304 2,560,318
RITREANEE Bank balances and cash 1,206,765 1,042,836
7,260,767 6,983,825
TREE Financial liabilities
B A Amortised cost
ERRRENZE Trade and bills payables 1,622,366 1,528,092
BRZERE Discounted bill financing = 5,760
RIRHEER Selling expenses payables 264,780 233,307
HiEI5R Other payables 55,482 51,874

1,942,628 1,819,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bills receivable, bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, discounted bill financing, selling expenses payables and
other payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. There has been no significant change to the
Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures these risks. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases,
sales, which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group
considers the currency risk insignificant and does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its exposure to currency risk.
The Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

-1 aff
Assets Liabilities
“E-=fF CZE--fF CZBE-=f CZE-ZF
t=A t=A t=A +=A
=t+-H =t+-H =t+-H ==F
31/12/2013 31/12/2012 31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ANEETT AEEFT AREFT AREFT

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000

(E51) (1 E75)
(restated) (restated)
UsD 10,673 12,537 — —
JPY 13,161 23,212 70,267 85,915
EUR 6,758 10,293 — —
HKD 29 31 — —
GBP 3 3 — —

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD, JPY
and EUR. The management assessed the risk of fluctuations in HKD
and GBP is insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analysis
in the RMB against HKD and GBP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
in the exchange rate of RMB against USD, JPY and EUR. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period end for a 5% change in RMB against USD, JPY and
EUR. A (negative) positive number below indicates (decrease)
increase in post-tax profit for the year, respectively, where the RMB
strengthen 5% against USD, JPY and EUR. For a 5% weakening of
the RMB against USD, JPY and EUR, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

¥z Bz
=g =it —E-—C—&
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-H
LLFE LLFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AEETT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

(=31)
(restated)

Profit or loss

usD (454) (633)
JPY 2,427 2,665
EUR (287) (437)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i)  Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates preliminary to bank
deposits with original maturity more than three months and
discounted bill financing included in trade, bills and other payables
carried at fixed interest rates. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of deposit interest rate
arising from the Group’s bank balances carried at variable rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate
at the end of the reporting period. 0.27% (2012: 0.27%) increase
or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.27% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2013 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB2,770,000 (2012: increase/decrease by RMB2,388,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
bank balances.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits
and monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debtors. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debtor at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on amounts due from related parties is limited
because the Group also periodically evaluated the related parties’
credit rating and these related parties credit rating is high.

There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 24 and the Group
periodically evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look
for more non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group
does not have significant concentration of credit risk on trade and
other receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-
parties and customers. The credit risk on liquid fund which are
deposited with several banks is limited because the Group's bank
deposits and bank balances are deposited with authorised banks in
the PRC with high credit-ratings.



mEMBEHRRMNE
HE_T-—=%+-_A=+—HBIEE

31. €@ I A

(b) BBEBEEEFEREXK
(&)

REEZ/EE

RERRBDESRR  AKEE
IRBRREEERERR IS
EReSEYKF URAKRE
LERHESLBERESRE)
BeXE AKBRBEERH
EEZRERIBERBEEZR
R BREAEEERETNRZR
B BAERAREERREBEAIR
JNE A A YER - SR AT RS BR AT R
FERRER REEEZESR
TEA EZHEAKERAR
ARBERTECENEAMBE
fE o

TRALAEEETESRAE
REBZERPZHBTARORER
W TERREBEESRMEBEZARTER
BamE (RN R E A% 2 SE K
ZEEAH)MES -

173

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’'d)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on
cash generated from operating activities as a significant source of
liquidity. Trade receivables and bills receivables can be received
within six months based on the earliest date on which the Group
can require payments and bank balances can be drawn on demand.
The directors believe that the Group will have sufficient funds
available to meet its financial obligations in the foreseeable future
based on management working capital forecast.

The following tables detail the Group’'s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

AR
REMEAR HFHZBEE
SIMER 3EARIE Total Carrying
Less than 12388 3months undiscounted  amount at
Tmonth  1-3 months to1year  cash flows year end
NEEFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
At 31 December 2013
Trade and bills payables 470,367 700,206 451,793 1,622,366 1,622,366
Selling expenses payables
and other payables 103,716 136,612 79,934 320,262 320,262
574,083 836,318 531,727 1,942,628 1,942,628
At 31 December 2012
(restated)
Trade and bills payables 598,907 667,615 261,570 1,528,092 1,528,092
Selling expenses payables,
discounted bill financing
and other payables 94,057 107,945 88,939 290,941 290,941
692,964 775,560 350,509 1,819,033 1,819,033

(¢) Fair values

The Group has no financial instruments measured at fair value on a

recurring basis.

The fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in

the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
32. BEARS &8 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
ANEBWMBEER &SR The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 24(a) and
24(a) }228(a) ° 28(a).
RNEERN  r ANEEBERESEFET During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
AR5 : with related parties:
(i) HEHEXREEREMNBATHN (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
X5
a EfEBLRERS (a)  Qingling Group and certain subsidiaries of Qingling Group
HETHBRARI(BRIAT (exclude the following subsidiaries set at in (b), (c), (d),
(b) ~ (c) ~ (d) * (e) * (f) (e), (f) and (g) below)
R(Q)FT 275 2 B A &)
GN)
Bz Bz
—E-=F —E-CF
+=ZA=t—B +=ZA=t+-H
REE Types of transactions LLEE LEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEER Sales of chassis 1,485,729 1,657,371
& T E 1 R B RHA R Sales of parts and raw materials for the
HEERETEE(E) manufacture of automobile parts (Note 1) 76,422 84,383
BERBETHE(HE2) Purchases of automobile parts (Note 2) 105,226 107,243
HERESH Expenses for renting warehouse 6,040 6,040
A FE AL Expenses for renting equipment 900 1,380
RBEL L Service fee expense 31 31
T fE g B (M FE3) Swap of the land use right (Note 3) 1,627 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32.

(i)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(@) (Cont'd)

Note 1: Included in the 2013 amount are RMB5,569,000 (2012: RMB5,891,000),

RMB61,319,000 (2012: RMB66,186,000) and RMB9,518,000 (2012:
RMB12,285,000) representing the sales of parts and raw materials toE & &
RTBHIMPBRIEARRAR (“Qingling Jijia"), EEERAE FREERRA
Al(“Qingling Shangzhuang”) and ZEEERAEREIHLAMRDA("Qingling
Chassis”) respectively during the current year.

Shangzhuang and Qingling Chassis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Qingling

Qingling Jijia, Qingling

Group.

Note 2: Included in the 2013 amount are RMB33,348,000 (2012: RMB29,462,000),

RMB5,529,000 (2012: RMB10,521,0000 and RMB63,386,000 (2012:
RMB58,249,000) representing the purchases of automobile parts from Qingling
Jijia, Qingling Shangzhuang and Qingling Chassis respectively during the

current year.
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BE T =Ft+_A=1+—HItFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
32. BEARS#tR(E) 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)
(i) EEREBEREMEATHN (i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
x5 (&) (Cont'd)
(@) (#&) (a) (Cont'd)
K3 : R=Z—=FN NA=+N\B  &2A Note 3: On 28 August 2013, the Company and Qingling Group entered into the Asset
RIEEREEGI B ERE BiHE Swap Agreement, pursuant to which the Company transfered and disposed its
Bt AARBEEREEER T land use right of Land | to Qingling Group and Qingling Group transfered and
W— tiERAETERER disposed of its land use right of Land Il to the Company. Upon completion,
MEXEESEEERHEAER Land Il was registered under the name of the Company while Land | was
T =t FERETFARF T registered under the name of Qingling Group. No additional consideration was
K T AR T 2B EE paid by either the Company or Qingling Group, as the respective market values
fit Lt —BIABREEZEZE of Land | and Land Il were equal. The book value of Land | as at 28 August
e AR — Rt —RBEZ 2013 was RMB1,527,000.

MERE AR ARFAREREE
D& SATERIMEE - £ —R =
Z-=FNA-FTN\BZEEER
AR #1,527,0007¢ °

BRI sE1 = 2RI A Z £ BEI - Other than the amounts included in Notes 1 and 2, the remaining
ﬁ%i%@%ﬁ%@@i%ﬁ%%Zx transaction amounts arise from the transactions with Qingling
Z o Group.

b) EREEZWEARE (b) BEEEH%BEER AR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

EEERBEERAA

BZE BZE

—E-=F —E-CF

+=A=+-B t=A=t-8H

RHER Types of transactions LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AEETFT — AEETT

RMB'000 RMB’000

BEARETIHMH Purchases of automobile parts 23,064 21,522
HETHHEREMBUAEEE RBSHH Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts 21,993 31,805
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(i) HEXKKERENBEAAN
X7 (&)

c) BREEZHBRARE
EBEERBERRRAA

RAER

BE BT
HETHHREMHAREESETHM

RERE

(d) BREEZMEBARE
EERBBERRAQA

REER

BEAETHM
HETRAREMHAREEAZTHMH

BER

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries
(Cont’d)

(c) EEERBEERAR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

BZE BE

—E-=F% —E-Cf

t=ZA=+-B +=A=+-H

Types of transactions LEE LEE
Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

AREFT AEEFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Purchases of automobile parts 39,771 49,677
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 12,406 23,342
Expenses for renting equipment 24,360 23,296

(d) BEEHREBERRAR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Bz Bz

“B-=fF —E-—CF

+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H

Types of transactions LLFE LEE
Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

AEETFT  ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

Purchases of automobile parts 75,263 106,183
Sales of parts and raw materials for the

manufacture of automobile parts 2,682 3,320
Purchases of equipment — 2,390
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(i) HEXKKERENBEAAN
X5

(&)

e) BREEZHEBARE
EERAEERARA
=

RZEE

BEAETHM
HETRHREMHAREEAZTHMH

() BREEZHBARE
EEREHMBRAQA

REER

BEAET RN
HETRAREMHAREEAZTHMH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Cont'd)

e) EEEBRBEEEARAR

Group

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts
Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts

a subsidiary of

Bz
—E-=F
t=A=1-H
LLFE

Year ended
31/12/2013
AEEFT
RMB’000

56,573

11,263

=

Qingling

Bz
—B-CF
A=t-H

LLFE
Year ended
31/12/2012

AEETT
RMB’000

63,586

12,402

() EEEHBEARAT, a subsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts
Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts

Bz
—2-=F
+ZA=1+-H
LLFE

Year ended
31/12/2013
AEEFT
RMB’000

65,760

2,834

=

Bz
—B-CF
A=t-H

LLFE
Year ended
31/12/2012

AEETT
RMB’000

74,925

3,220
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X5
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(00 BREEZHBRARE
EE##EBARAA
RAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Cont'd)

() EEEH%BIEER AR, asubsidiary of Qingling Group

Types of transactions

Purchases of automobile parts
Sales of parts and raw materials for the
manufacture of automobile parts

(ii) Transactions with Isuzu

Types of transactions

Purchases of parts and components

Royalties on sales of trucks and other vehicles

Sales of accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components

Payments for acquisition of intangible assets

Bz Bz
—E-=f —E--f
+=RA=+-B t=A=t-H
LLFE ILFE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  AERETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
9,628 14,053

1,432 5,166

S 8z
—E-=F —E-—F
+=ZA=+-B t=A=t-8H
LFEE LFEE
Year ended Year ended
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1,072,791 1,123,305
55,886 66,644
20,691 43,422
57,373 17,609




e B R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHE-_T—=F+_-_A=1+—HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
32. MEARS & (H) 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)
(iii) BEXRAF[zAELEER (ili) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine, a joint venture of
E-RTEBEBARS the Company

Bz Bz

—E-=F% —E-Cf

+=A=t—-B +=A=1+-H

REEE Types of transactions HEE HEE
Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

ARETT  AERETT

RMB'000 RMB'000

HEEXTHE R REME Sales of accessory sets and raw materials 864,823 1,048,633

BERETHMH Purchases of automobile parts 1,332,707 1,474,649

HHRBEME WA Rental income for investment properties 8,152 12,360

HERARTAREZUA Rental income for moulds and tooling equipment 50,208 50,208

B A Miscellaneous service income 2,005 2,763

(iv BEXQATZ2E-LEER (iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales, a joint venture of
A+REENRS the Company

¥z B2

—B-=F —B-CF

+=A=+-B +t=B=t-H

REE Types of transactions LLEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

AREFT  AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

HERERSETTH Sales of trucks and automobile parts 6,226 9,825

HEREMEZBA Rental income for investment properties 1,464 1,464

HIBRA Miscellaneous service income 500 500

181



mEMBEHRRMNE
HE_T-—=%+-_A=+—HBIEE

32. BEFXS B

(v) EXAEEzBHEQITE+R
BEREMABFEENRS

REER

HEREDEZBWA
L ON
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont'd)

(v) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering, an

associate of the Group

Bz
—E-=F
t=A=+-H
LLFE

Year ended
31/12/2013
AEEFT
RMB’000

Types of transactions

Rental income for investment properties 314
Miscellaneous service income 467

Bz
—E——F
+=A=t-H
LLFE

Year ended
31/12/2012
AEETT
RMB’000

(vi) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, an associate

of Qingling Group

Bz
—E-=f
+=A=+-H
LEE

Year ended
31/12/2013
AEETT
RMB’000

Types of transactions

Rental income for investment properties 314
Miscellaneous service income 353

Bz
—E-—F
+=A=+-H
LLFE

Year ended
31/12/2012
ANEETT
RMB’000
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(vii) EFEEMERFEEERN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is
part of a larger group of companies under Qingling Group which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above,
the Group also conducts businesses with other government-related

entities. The directors of the Company consider those government-

related entities are independent third parties so far as the Group's

business transactions with them are concerned.

Material transactions/balances
entities are as follow:

other government-related

E Bz

“E-=f —E-—F

+ZA=+-B +=A=+-H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

AREFT AREFTT

RMB'000 RMB’000

(&=E51))

(restated)

Trade sales 1,222,505 1,292,976
Trade purchases 1,335,001 1,565,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(Cont'd)

(vii) Transactions/balances with other government-related
entities in the PRC (Cont’'d)

“E-=f —E-—F
t=A=+-B t=B=t-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AERETT  AERETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(m&3)
(restated)
Trade and other balances due to other
government-related entities 91,669 161,083
Trade and other balances due from other
government-related entities 947,867 403,739

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the PRC
government, and deposits and other general banking facilities with
certain banks and financial institutions which are government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of
these banking transactions, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that separate disclosure would is not meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not
significant to the Group's operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(Cont’'d)

(viii) Compensation of directors

personnel

The remuneration of directors and other
management during the year are as follows:

and key management

members of key

S BZ

—E-=F —E-CF

+=A=+-B +t=A=t-H

LEE LEE

Year ended Year ended

31/12/2013 31/12/2012

AREFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

Short-term benefits 3,204 2,961
Post-employment benefits 165 148
3,369 3,109

33. COMMITMENTS

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following capital commitments:

=F =1
+=A=+-8
31/12/2013
AEETT
RMB’000
Contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets 95,636
Approved by the directors but not contracted
in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets 17,583

—E-—F
+=A=t+-H
31/12/2012
AEEFT
RMB'000
(s &31)

(restated)

117,100

122,129
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

34. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee

—B-=f C-B-C-f
+=A=t-B +=A=t-A
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
ARETT  ARETT
RMB000  AMB'000

(=51
(restated)
Minimum lease payment paid under operating
lease during the year:
Premises 9,574 8,705
Equipment 26,721 24,721
36,295 33,426

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

—E-=f —E-—F
+=ZA=t-H t=A=+-H
31/12/2013  31/12/2012
AEETFT  ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

Within one year 35,493 31,323
In the second to fifth year inclusive 59,234 4,054
94,727 35,377

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its warehouses and production facilities. Leases
are negotiated for an average term of one to three years. Some
contracts have been renewed during the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

34. OPERATING LEASE (Cont’'d)
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

—E-=f —E--f
+=RA=+-B t=A=t-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AEETT  ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
(mE5)
(restated)
Within one year 51,893 59,953
In the second to fifth year inclusive 99,058 9,464
150,951 69,417

The amount represents rentals receivable from Qingling Isuzu
Engine, Qingling Isuzu Sales, Isuzu Qingling Engineering and
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts for certain of its land and buildings and
production facilities.

Other than the above, the Group does not have any other
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases of property, plant and equipment and
investment property at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

B’\\ —=f+ZHA=+T—8H0K Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 and
== _¢+ A=+—BAAR 31 December 2012 are as follows:
A B AR BN T
MR EEER EBREBEA RAREEEEN
Country of Form of REENFIL
WEAREH registration and business FZMEAR  Proportion of ownership interests EE#7%
Name of subsidiary ~ operation structure Registered capital directly held by the Company  Principal activities
—B-=% —B--f
2013 2012
EFRREARRAR B — b AL 38,166,600 7T 50.56% 5056%  AEFETEHHMER
([EREL]) BBARZME  Incorporated US$38,166,600 Production of moulds
("Qingling Moulds") The PRC — for the manufacture
Sino foreign of automobile parts
equity joint
venture
ERELRATL HE — fsh AL 29,980,000% 7T 51% B1%  WARFZES
([EfBa0) ) AREBEDLE  Incorporated US$29,980,000 Not yet commenced
(“Qingling Technical  The PRC — business
Center”) Sino foreign
equity joint
venture

FRZFNB QR IAL AT EM
BEES

TEWMBRRNREREBRAE
EEBEECKEEERRIAAE
E RN BER BN ERRS -

RBEHR  NEEZF2EM
BRARBEAEARFZERER -
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None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of principal
subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash
dividends, or to repay loans or advances made by the Group.

The end of reporting period non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group have material non-controlling interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

OF

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

= =it —E-—C—&
+=ZA=+-B +=A=+-H
31/12/2013 31/12/2012
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,123,165 1,325,808
Prepaid lease payments 43,426 44,809
Investment properties 39,022 49,967
Intangible assets 43,641 20,961
Investments in subsidiaries 285,073 285,073
Investments in an associate 6,333 6,333
Investments in joint ventures 315,774 315,774
Deferred tax assets 2,299 2,330
Prepayments for acquisition of
non-current assets 50,681 20,294
1,909,414 2,071,349
Current assets
Inventories 792,603 692,071
Trade and other receivables 798,898 856,622
Bills receivables 2,648,475 2,564,134
Prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
Bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months 2,380,800 2,310,800
Bank balances and cash 924,615 758,329
7,546,774 7,183,339
Current liabilities
Amount due to subsidiaries 42,227 36,591
Trade, bills and other payables 2,115,310 2,044,571
Tax liabilities 25,465 18,215
2,183,002 2,099,377
Net current assets 5,363,772 5,083,962
Total assets less current liabilities 7,273,186 7,165,311
Capital and reserves
Share capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
Share premium and reserves 4,790,918 4,673,043
Total equity 7,273,186 7,165,311




e B R M E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BE-—T-—=F+-A=1+—-RLEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

36. BEARAMBMRRRN 36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

&R (E) FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)
RWEBRR BEAARRRREE Information about movements in reserves of the Company at the
FMERBE end of the reporting period includes:

REZ28
Movements in reserves
EEAES
Statutory
RARE EALNES surplus  REEF
Share Capital reserve  Retained fit
premium reserve fund profits Total

ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARKTL
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R=B--f-A-H At 1 January 2012 1,764,905 572,210 838,038 1513391 4,688,544
EERNRGEEYE Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year — — — 282,370 282,370
FRAR Appropriation for the year - 28,834 (28,834) -
PAEEEARRRHIRAR S Unclaimed H shares dividend of prior year — — — 1 1
XNZE-—FRERE 2011 final dividend paid - - — (297872 (297872
R-B-Z£+-A=t-H At 31 December 2012 1764905 572210 866,872 1469056 4,673,043
FERN RS EYE Profit and total comprehensive income

for the year — — — 366,102 366,102
FREAK Appropriation for the year - - 35,614 (35,614) -
INZF-ZERERS 2012 final dividend paid - - —  (48227)  (248,227)
RIZ—=F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2013 1,764,905 572,210 902,486 1,551,317 4,790,918
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BHEEE FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEEE — BEFTBUERS Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Z A Reporting Standards
mERE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BET-A=+-BLEE

For the Year ended 31 December
ZE-ZF ZB--f -5 ZE-BF ZBENE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETTL
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(&&5) (Kg5) (GFH) (FE))

(restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)

WA Revenue 5,782,887 6,145,756 8,115,200 6,102,569 4,483,966
BRAERT &R Profit before tax 442,253 346,051 413367 352,186 289,417
FEHAY Income tax expense (64,632)  (50,378)  (57,217)  (48,863)  (54,257)
FR & Profit for the year 377,621 295,673 356,150 303,323 235,160
BEN Attributable to:
ARAEEA Owners of

the Company 371,681 290,701 353,658 301,666 240,827
FRkER Non-controlling

interests 5,940 4,972 2,492 1,657 (5,667)

377,621 295,673 356,150 303,323 235,160
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BHEEE FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEEE — BEFTBUERS Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

A (%) Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

REBBRRER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Rt=A=t+-8H

As at 31 December
ZE-=f ZB-Zf ZB--§ ZE-BF ZZBhE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ANEETFT AREFT AEETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(ga5)) (K=FZ) (K&EH) (KB7])

(restated)  (restated)  (restated)  (restated)

BEE Total assets 9,830,454 9,624,656 10,143,706 10,385,522 9,069,707
BafE Total liabilities (2,163,579) (2,083,279) (2,598,211) (2,920,743) (1,734,424)
LB Total equity 7,666,875 7,541,377 7,545,495 7,437,779 7,335,283
SRR Attributable to:
UNCIE 2PN Owners of

the Company 7,369,837 7,246,383 7,253,553 7,148,122 7,045,036
IR ER Non-controlling

interests 297,038 294,994 291,942 289,657 290,247

7,666,875 7,641,377 7,545,495 7,437,779 7,335,283
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR OF 2013

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company
resolved that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of
2013 be as follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be: 10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund, 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note 1) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.13 per share in cash (Note 2).
Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting, the proposal final dividend is expected to
be paid to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of shareholders on Tuesday, 24 June 2014. Further
announcement will be made as to the exact form of payment.

Note: 1. In accordance with the amendment to the Company Law of PRC on
27 October 2005 effective from 1 January 2006, and pursuant to the
Company'’s articles of association and the resolutions of the board
of directors of the Company, the Company decided not to accrue for
Statutory Public Benefit Fund from the year of 2006.

2. According to the regulations of the Enterprise Income Tax Law of
the People’'s Republic of China, Implementation Regulations on
Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income Tax
Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend to Non-Resident
Enterprise Holders of Overseas H Shares issued by the China’s
State Administration of Taxation (Guo Shui Han [2008] No. 897 on 6
November 2008), any China resident enterprise which pays dividend
to non-resident enterprise holders of overseas H shares for the year of
2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay enterprise income
tax at a unified tax rate of 10%. Any shares registered in the name

of non-individual registered shareholders, including HKSCC Nominees
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
FOR THE YEAR OF 2013

Limited, other nominees or trustees or other groups and organizations
will be treated as being held by non-resident enterprise shareholders
and therefore the dividend payable therein will be subject to the

withholding of the enterprise income tax.

According to the Notice of Certain Preferential Policies for the
Enterprise Income Tax issued by the Ministry of Finance and the
State of Administration of Taxation (Cai Shui [2008] No. 1 promulgated
on 22 February 2008), accumulated undistributed profit of foreign-
invested enterprises generated before 1 January 2008 and distributed
to foreign investors after 2008 are exempt from enterprise income

tax.

Having consulted the relevant tax regulatory authority by the
Company, such policy is effective. As part of the Company’s 2013
final dividend will be paid out of the Company’'s accumulated
undistributed profit generated before 1 January 2008, and the
remaining be paid out of accumulated undistributed profit generated
after 1 January 2008, the Company is required, before any payment
of dividend, to withhold and pay enterprise income tax at the standard
rate of 10% in respect of the accumulated undistributed profit

generated after 1 January 2008.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
20 March 2014
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting (the
“"AGM") of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) will be held
at the Conference Hall, 1st Floor of the Company's Office Building,
1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”) on Wednesday, 11 June
2014 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To consider and approve the report of the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board”) for the year of 2013.

2. To consider and approve the report of the supervisory
committee of the Company for the year of 2013.

3. To consider and approve the audited financial statements and
the independent auditor’s report of the Company for the year
of 2013.

4.  To consider and approve the proposal for appropriation of profit
of the Company for the year of 2013.

5. To re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s PRC and international auditors respectively for the
year of 2014 and to authorize the Board to determine their
remunerations.

By Order of the Board
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
WU Nianging

Company Secretary

Chongging, the PRC,
22 April 2014
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Any shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting mentioned above is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote at the meeting on his/
her behalf in accordance with the articles of association of the Company. A proxy
need not be a shareholder of the Company.
In order to be valid, the proxy form and, if such proxy form is signed by a
person under a power of attorney or other authority on behalf of the appointer, a
notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority shall be deposited
at the legal address of the Company at 1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo
District, Chongging, the PRC (in the case of proxy form of holder of domestic
shares) or at the Company’s H Share Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited,
at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (in
the case of proxy form of holder of H shares) not less than 24 hours before the
time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the time appointed for taking the

poll.

Shareholders or their proxies shall produce their identity documents when

attending the meeting.

To ascertain the shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from Monday, 12 May
2014 to Wednesday, 11 June 2014 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share
Registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than

4:30 p.m. on Friday, 9 May 2014.

Shareholders whose names appear in the register of shareholders of the
Company on Monday, 12 May 2014 are entitled to attend and vote at the

meeting.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Shareholders who intend to attend the meeting shall complete and lodge the
reply slip for attending the meeting at the Company's legal address at 1 Xiexing
Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging, the PRC on or before
Thursday, 22 May 2014. The reply slip may be delivered to the Company by
hand, by post, by cable or by fax (at fax no.: (86) 23-68830397).

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be payable to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of shareholders on Tuesday, 24 June 2014. To ascertain the
shareholders’ entitlement to the proposal final dividend, the register of
shareholders of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 17 June 2014 to
Tuesday, 24 June 2014 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
duly completed transfer forms relating to H shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrars, Hong
Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16
June 2014.

The AGM is not expected to take more than half a day. Shareholders or their
proxies attending the AGM shall be responsible for their own travel and

accommodation expenses.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all votes of the
shareholders at the meeting will be taken by poll except where the chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands and the Company will
announce the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under rule 13.39(5) of

the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 11 directors, of which Mr. DU
Weidong, Mr. Naotoshi TSUTSUMI, Mr. GAO Jianmin, Mr. Makoto TANAKA, Mr.
Ryozo TSUKIOKA, Mr. PAN Yong and Mr. ZENG Jianjiang are executive directors
and Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. XU Bingjin and Mr. LIU Tianni are

independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Executive Director:

DU Weidong (Chairman)

Naotoshi TSUTSUMI (Vice Chairman)
GAQ Jianmin

Makoto TANAKA (General Manager)
Ryozo TSUKIOKA

PAN Yong

ZENG Jianjiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

SUPERVISORS

MIN Qing (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
ZHOU Hong

LEI Bin

COMPANY SECRETARY
PRC: WU Nianging
Hong Kong: TUNG Tat Chiu Michael

AUDIT COMMITTEE

SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
SONG Xiaojiang (Committee Chairman)
DU Weidong

LONG Tao

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
DU Weidong (Committee Chairman)
LONG Tao

SONG Xiaojiang

XU Bingjin

LIU Tianni

CORPORATE INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT
Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

LEGAL ADDRESS

1 Xiexing Cun

Zhongliangshan

Jiulongpo District

Chongaing

the People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 4901, 49th Floor

Office Tower, Convention Plaza

1 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.gingling.com.cn

H SHARE REGISTRARS
Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

H SHARE LISTING PLACE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1122
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China, Chongging Branch

Bank of Communications, Chongging Branch

The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Chongging Branch
The Commercial and Industrial Bank of China, Zhongliangshan Office

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
8/F Office Tower W2

The Towers, Oriental Plaza

1 East Chang An Avenue

Beijing 100738

the People’s Republic of China

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
as to Hong Kong laws:

Tung & Co.

Office 1601, 16/F

LHT Tower

31 Queen’'s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC laws:

Haiwen & Partners

Room 1016

Beijing Silver Tower

No. 2 Dong San Huan North Road
Chao Yang District

Beijing 100027

the People’s Republic of China
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